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China Everbright Limited (“Everbright”, stock code: 165) is a cross-border
diversified financial holdings enterprise. Its parent company is China
Everbright Holdings Company Limited.

Everbright, established in 1997, focuses on developing direct investment,
asset management and asset investment businesses, while at the same time
develops fee-based businesses including investment banking (corporate
financing) and brokerage services (wealth management). For the past
decade, Everbright has developed solid market bases in various sectors and
provided diversified services for the clients. Everbright has set up securities
brokerage and wealth management branches at North Point and Hung Hom
in Hong Kong and subsidiaries at Shenzhen and Beijing in the Mainland.
Everbright is the second largest and third largest shareholder of Mainland-
based Everbright Securities Company Limited and China Everbright Bank
Company Limited respectively.

Relying on the substantial financial strength and the status and influence of
the parent and associated companies in the financial industry in Mainland
China, Everbright has weaved huge social and business networks in Hong
Kong and the Mainland. Adopting the core values of “customer-friendly”,
“agile” and “pragmatic”, Everbright provides convenient, professional and
practical solutions to the clients and helps clients build up wealth and value

effortlessly.
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Direct Investment EiZiRE&

Through the private equity funds and venture capital funds managed by us, we provide investors
with opportunities to benefit from the fast growing economy of China by investing directly in
companies which have their principal businesses and/or operations in Mainland China.
RARMEENLEES REIEREES  HAIRREERFEEERENET BHAMAL L E
RHAGE - BREEEHDZHELERRZEAKR

Asset Management EEEE

We provide portfolio management services for institutional and individual clients, such as “China
Everbright Dragon Fund”.
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Asset Investment EX K&

We explore mid to long term asset investment opportunities in the Mainland, develop asset
investment funds targeting real estate, financial, aerospace and resources businesses in the
Mainland.
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Investment Banking &R & 1T

We act as sponsors, lead managers or co-lead managers for IPOs, and provide financial advisory
services such as share placements, M&A, privatization and project financing.
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Brokerage & Wealth Management
RENVEEERE

Brokerage provides securities trading services in Hong Kong, Mainland China (B shares) and other
countries, as well as share financing, IPO subscriptions and placements services.

It offers 24-hour trading services of 7 major foreign currencies and 6 types of cross trading, as
well as precious metals trading services, to institutional and individual investors.

It acts as an agent to provide trading services of the Hang Seng Index Futures, H-shares Index
Futures of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx) and overseas derivatives and futures
contracts (Chicago Mercantile Exchange (CME) and London Metal Exchange (LME)).

Wealth Management provides a one-stop financial service platform offering investment-linked and
insurance-related products along with traditional financial products. It also provides all-rounded
personal financial planning services comprising financial analysis and portfolio recommendation.
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Performance Highlights
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Chairman’s
Statement

F & e

Against a rapidly deteriorating business environment in the
wake of volatility and uncertainties in the global financial
market, the Group sustained healthy development in 2008
thanks to persistence in its stated strategies, stringent risk
controls and prudence in business operation. Credit is also
due the shrewd decisions of the Board and the concerted
efforts of our dedicated staff.
“EEN\FRREMHBAERSL  IBRESBEL - EES
ENERARNEBECHREZ LT » AEERGEH  HEZ
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Chairman’s Statement
FEME

Against a rapidly deteriorating business environment in the wake of
volatility and uncertainties in the global financial market, the Group
sustained healthy development in 2008 thanks to persistence in its
stated strategies, stringent risk controls and prudence in business
operation. Credit is also due the shrewd decisions of the Board and
the concerted efforts of our dedicated staff.

We underwent a year of severe challenges in 2008. Developed countries
were facing recession while demand in emerging markets lost steam as the
effect of the international financial crisis rippled through day-to-day economic
activities, resulting in significantly undermined momentum for economic
growth. In China, the Central Government addressed the global financial
crisis and the aftermath of the devastating natural calamities in a composed
manner, while enjoying huge success in hosting the Beijing Olympic Games.
Steady economic growth was sustained, as was social harmony and stability.
The Central Government implemented bold measures to stimulate domestic
demand in response to the new challenge posed by slowing domestic
economic growth and weakened demand from the international market.
A pro-active fiscal policy and a moderately relaxed monetary policy were
adopted and initial results have been encouraging. In Hong Kong, the SAR
Government introduced timely measures to enhance social and economic
stability as the local economy took a dive with rising unemployment and
plunging stock and property markets.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEME

To face the challenge, the Group adhered to its strategy of developing
“large scale asset management business”. Complemented by its fee-
based business, the Group committed to its primary businesses of asset
management and fund management to establish itself as an integrated
investment bank. The Group made certain timely divestment at the beginning
of the year and adopted measures for risk hedging purposes. As a result,
its business remained stable and operating costs were well controlled with
no bank borrowings. The Group seized the opportunity to exit from two
direct investments at an opportune time and generated a substantial gain.
Furthermore, we successfully set up a platform for real estate investment
management in the Mainland by acquiring “ALAM" at a reasonable price.
For the Investment Banking Division, the Group completed sponsorships
for two successful IPO listings on the Main Board in Hong Kong despite the
adverse market sentiment. Under the impact of the exterior environment,
income and profit of the Group inevitably declined in 2008. However, we still
recorded profit attributable to shareholders of HK$1.015 billion, representing
a decrease of HK$4 billion compared to that of 2007. A final dividend of
HK$0.12 per share (2007: HK$0.10 per share) was recommended.

Everbright Securities, the associated company of the Group, ranked within
the top 10 among its peers in terms of major business indicators, due to its
smooth operation. Its A-share listing application had been approved by the
Public Offering Review Committee of China Securities Regulatory Commission
("CSRC") and was rated as a “Grade A, Category AA”, currently the highest
rating for brokerage firms. Everbright Securities obtained the qualification for
a number of innovative businesses and its margin trading and short-selling
businesses passed the test conducted by the CSRC. During the year, the asset
management division of Everbright Securities made solid progress in terms of
operations and its collective wealth management products secured a leading
position in the industry.

Everbright Bank, whose shares are held by the Group, reported its best results
since commencing business 16 years ago. The quality of the bank’s assets
was remarkably enhanced with earnings increased and capital sufficiency rate
up to par upon completion of the disposal of its historical non-performing
assets in bulk. During the period, Everbright Bank submitted its A-Share IPO
application to the CSRC.

Looking forward, we will still face substantial challenges in 2009. The worst
of the international financial crisis is yet to come and new issues might
surface to pose severe threats to the global financial markets. Although there
is short-term difficulty for the economy of Mainland China, the fundamental
trend of economic development remains unchanged, which augurs well for
Hong Kong as well as the world.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWE

We have every confidence in our performance in 2009 as the Board and the
management are now in a better position to seize the opportunities and
manage the risk in the future given the sophisticated corporate governance
framework in place, together with the improved financial position and the
enhanced asset quality. The reform and reorganization of China Everbright
Group, our parent company, as well as the steady and healthy growth of
both Everbright Bank and Everbright Securities laid a solid foundation for the
Group’s sound and healthy development. Notwithstanding the challenges
ahead in 2009, the Group will adhere to its stated development strategy and
adopt proactive measures to manage its risks. With a view to establishing
the Group as a renowned financial service platform in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, we will strive hard to expand the portfolio of assets under
management, diversify our business and enhance our corporate image.

Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere thanks to our
shareholders, customers, all members of the Board, stakeholders,
management and staff at all levels, whose support and dedication has been
fundamental to the Group’s achievement of satisfactory results during such
difficult times.

Tang Shuangning
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2009
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Chiet Executive
Officer’s Report

T AB T RS

he “3+2 Large Scale Assets Management” strategy, Hong Kong operations developed steadily
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atic approach and flexible measures to accommodate market changes

RS FES RIS S L

;ﬁuﬁkﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ RIS BEEEE R (%A

e
5T %%QT@W&%%@&EEEﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ?@%ﬁ?%@ﬁﬁﬁ&%

gregate dividend for 2008 is HK$0. 20 (2007: HK$0.10) pe
% B AR 20 ( —ETLFE /%?ﬁﬁo 107



Chief Executive Officer’s Report
TR B S

Despite the harsh external environment in 2008, Everbright maintained
healthy development under the leadership of the Board by adopting
prudent and pragmatic management philosophy and flexible and efficient
measures. The healthy financial positions and abundant cash provide
opportunities for the Group to further develop during the market trough.

Results of the Group

The global financial markets went through a very tough year in 2008. The
financial tsunami triggered by the US subprime crisis sent shock waves
around the world. The global financial markets dropped considerably and
changed fundamentally. Although the financial systems have resumed
stability to some degree in light of the rescue packages launched by
various governments, the volatility in the financial markets has already
dealt a severe blow to the real economy. Facing the rapidly deteriorating
external environment, the Group managed to find opportunities to reduce
market exposures and succeeded in mitigating the impact from the market
downturn. For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group’s profit
attributable to shareholders amounted to HK$1,015 million, a decrease of
80% compared to the same period last year, while its earnings per share
were HK$0.639, a decrease of 80% compared with the same period last
year.

Hong Kong operations

In 2008, the Group's Hong Kong operations were affected by the adverse
market conditions and suffered, but maintained a sound overall financial
position. In addition to existing divisions of direct investment, asset
management, investment banking and securities brokerage, the Group
set up a new platform for asset investment. For 2008, the total operating
income of the Group amounted to HK$343 million, representing a decrease
of 53% compared with the same period last year. The profit before tax of
our Hong Kong operations was HK$703 million, representing a decrease
of 57%. Total outgoings reached HK$377 million, representing a decrease
of 37%, of which staff costs accounted for HK$211 million, representing
a decrease of HK$89 million compared with the same period last year. The
decline was mainly due to reduction in staff incentive bonus, which was in
line with the drop in financial results. Total cost-to-income ratio stood at
28.1%, representing an increase of 1.2% compared with 26.9% for the
prior year.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
TTHEAER RS

Hong Kong operations (continued)

Under the abruptly deteriorating external environment, the Group was still
able to attain fairly satisfactory performance in its Hong Kong operations. It
shows that the Group is capable of grasping market opportunities, and that
its increasingly strong abilities in business development and risk control are
paying off.

—  The Direct Investment Division continued to be the Group’s main
source of profits. Certain investee companies (which have been listed)
saw significant fall in value. Its annual profit before tax was HK$390
million, a decrease of 49% over the corresponding period last year. The
direct investment team has demonstrated its insight into the market.
Seizing the opportunities in early 2008, Seabright China Special
Opportunities (I) Limited (“SOF 1”), which is managed by the Group,
disposed of some of the investments held, locking in profits and
realising a large amount of cash. China Special Opportunities Fund, L.P.
("CSOF") and the “parallel investment fund” are in their investment
period. The investment team had considered hundreds of potential
investment projects with a cautious and prudent approach during
the year. While continuing to identify good investment opportunities,
the team did not make any new investment and effectively avoided
market risks. The businesses of the investee projects of SOF | and
CSOF are performing well, one of which has been approved by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and looking for an opportunity to go
public. However, the overall market dropped significantly. That caused
impairment to the book value of some projects, which was taken
through to the income statement. The impairment was done according
to the accounting standards and does not relate to any asset disposal
or cash flow. During the period, the venture capital fund formed
between the Group and Beijing Zhongguancun, and the venture
investment company in Shenzhen, had explored market opportunities
and invested into three projects.

—  Dragon Fund, which is managed by the Asset Management Division,
suffered from the persistent market downturn and recorded a
significant loss in the first half of 2008. It responded quickly by
installing a new management team and investing more prudently. It
effectively reduced the market risks and basically broke even during
the second half of the year, which was an even harsher period.
For the year, the Asset Management Division recorded a loss of
HK$150 million, compared to the profit of HK$304 million for the
corresponding period last year. The size of Dragon Fund was HK$670
million as at the end of 2008 with a return rate of -23.5% for the
period, outperforming the Hang Seng Index which registered a decline
of 48.3% for the same period.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
1T AR RS

Hong Kong operations (continued)

To fully utilise our expertise and strength in the Mainland, the Group
set up the Asset Investment Division in 2008, targeting the further
development of its asset investment in such areas as real estate,
infrastructure and resources in the Mainland. In October 2008, the
Group acquired a 51% stake in ALAM (later renamed as “Everbright
ALAM"), thereby successfully establishing a platform for investing and
managing real estate projects in the Mainland. With a total of US$110
million worth of assets under its management, including two real estate
investments, Everbright ALAM has operating units in both Beijing
and Hong Kong. During the period, the Asset Investment Division
participated in the setting up of the Shanxi Resources Fund and signed
an agreement to join Shanxi Zhaohui Resources Fund Management
Company as a shareholder.

Notwithstanding the shrinking market demand and negative
investment sentiments, the Investment Banking Division has actively
developed its business and signed several IPO sponsor agreements
with various enterprises. With strong project organising skills, it
successfully sponsored the listing of Vitar International and Strong
Petrochemical on the Hong Kong Main Board during the second
half of 2008. During the period, the Investment Banking Division
undertook the underwriting and placing functions of 12 corporate
exercises, and acted as a financial advisor in 21 projects, recording a
profit of HK$5.65 million, a decrease of 82% over the corresponding
period last year.

In the Brokerage Division, retail clients continued to be the major
source of business. Under the influence of the current market
atmosphere, the trading volume of the Hong Kong stock market
decreased substantially and IPO activities almost came to a halt during
the year. As a result, commissions from clients, margin financing and
interest income from IPO-related loans dropped considerably. The
brokerage business recorded an annual pre-tax profit of HK$72.2
million, a drop of 66% over the corresponding period last year. During
the period, the Group set up a new securities and wealth management
branch in Hung Hom to provide better service to clients.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
TTHEAER RS

Hong Kong operations (continued)

—  Being a necessary supplement for enhancing the Group’s return on
capital, strategic investment has brought significant economic benefits
to the Group over the past decade. During the year, having considered
the market conditions and the forecast of the investee enterprises,
the Group reduced its strategic investment portfolio size and in so
doing effectively mitigated the impact arising from the drop in return
of other divisions, reporting a profit of HK$811 million, a growth of
736% over the corresponding period last year.

With the tremendous volatility in the financial market, proper internal
control is crucial for the sustainable development of an enterprise. During
the year, the Group revised the written mandates of the Board and the
management committee, further defining the scope of duties and terms
of reference of the two bodies. That allowed the management to react
to market conditions promptly and to take timely measures under proper
authorisation. The Group attaches great importance to risk management
and set up the position of “Chief Risk Officer”, who is responsible
for monitoring risks and is directly accountable to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee of the Board.

The Group was also keen in enhancing its relationship with investors, and
took the initiative to cooperate with major financial institutions, which led
to a noticeable increase in research reports on the Group. The Group made
great efforts in attracting and retaining high calibre staff, adjusted the staff
structure during the year to cope with our business development plan,
recruited professionals of international vision, and maintained a low staff
turnover rate.

In addition, the Group continued to pursue its brand-building strategy.
Building on the foundation laid in the previous year, the Group worked
with world-renowned public relations agencies to revamp the existing brand
management structure and successfully enhanced the Group’s corporate
image through a series of promotional tactics such as a new company
website.
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Everbright Securities

In 2008, under the influence of the economic downturn both in Mainland
China and overseas, the securities market in the Mainland dropped
significantly and the trading volume continued to decrease. The income
generated by the securities industry fell sharply compared with the previous
year.

Under such influence, the total annual income of Everbright Securities
Company Limited, a 39.31% associated company of the Group, amounted
to RMB4.83 billion, and the profit after tax of RMB1.19 billion was recorded
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, a
decrease of 76% over the corresponding period last year. Commissions
from the brokerage business, proprietary securities trading, issuance of
warrants, asset management, interest and other income accounted for
62%, 1%, 3%, 13%, 17% and 4% of the total income respectively. During
the period, the market share of Everbright Securities’ equity and fund
unit brokerage business was 3.29%, ranking the 9th in the Mainland. Its
investment banking business ranked 12th and 10th respectively in terms of
the number of issues and the amount of capital raised for equity securities,
and was among the top ten in terms of other major sales benchmarks.

The asset management business continued to develop. “Everbright Sunshine
3", a collective asset management product, was successfully launched
amid adverse market conditions. In 2008, Everbright Securities obtained
three business qualifications: the Qualified Domestic Institutional Investor
(QDII); the Stock, Index and Futures Introducing Brokers (IB); and the Pilot
Direct Investment Business. The margin trading and short-selling business
also passed the networking test run organised by the CSRC. Meanwhile, it
was rated as a “Grade A, Category AA” brokerage house in the Mainland,
which is presently the highest rating for brokerage houses in the Mainland.
It has provided a solid foundation for Everbright Securities to launch various
innovative businesses and to develop healthily and comprehensively.

On 30 June 2008, Everbright Securities’ application for A-share IPO was
approved by the CSRC. Being the first brokerage house approved for an
IPO in the Mainland in the past five years, Everbright Securities will seize the
favourable opportunity and go public as soon as practicable.

As at 31 December 2008, Everbright Securities has set up 78 sales offices
and 16 securities services offices nationwide.

14 China Everbright Limited F1 Byt KiEpE AR A &)
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Everbright Bank

In 2008, Everbright Bank (whose 6.23% stake is held by the Group)
disposed of its historical non-performing assets on a wholesale basis,
successfully offsetting the historical accumulated losses. The capital
adequacy ratio met the increasingly stringent regulatory requirement and
subordinated debts were issued, details of which were officially recorded
in its annual report for the year. During the period, the development of
various businesses under Everbright Bank was on the right track and the
quality of assets continued to improve. As at 31 December 2008, from
the unaudited accounts (applicable to all below) based on the accounting
standards of the Mainland, the total assets of Everbright Bank amounted
to RMB851.8 billion and the loan balance of RMB468.5 billion, respective
increases of 15.2% and 12.3% compared to those at the beginning of the
year. Profit after tax amounted to RMB7.32 billion, an increase of 45.2%
from the corresponding period last year. Everbright Bank also completed
the packaged sale of non-performing assets of RMB14.2 billion and the
issuance in three tranches of subordinated debts of RMB13 billion. The
balance of non-performing loans was reduced to RMB9.4 billion, and the
non-performing loan ratio stood at 2.0%, representing a decline of 2.5%
over the beginning of the year. Credit allowance coverage was 150.1%,
representing an increase of 58.5% over the beginning of the year.

During the period, the application for public listing of Everbright Bank’s
A-shares achieved considerable progress. The board of directors and
shareholders of Everbright Bank passed the relevant resolutions approving
the listing. The application for listing was formally submitted to the
Mainland regulatory authorities in early June and is awaiting their approval.

Financial Position
As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s financial positions are as follows:

e  The total assets of the Group amounted to approximately HK$15.1
billion, comprising cash on hand of approximately HK$4.4 billion. The
Group has a very healthy current ratio of 4.6 to 1. Apart from trade
liabilities in the ordinary course of business, the Group has no material
liabilities at present. The Group’s committed borrowing facilities
amounted to approximately HK$170 million. The Group’s gearing ratio
(computed as the Group’s total interest bearing liabilities divided by
shareholders’ fund) was 0% (2007: 0%).

e The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations
other than assets denominated in Renminbi.
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Financial Position (continued)
e None of the Group'’s listed securities was pledged.

e  The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities. The Group
had provided guarantees in respect of loans extended to its subsidiaries
totalling approximately HK$170 million. There was no outstanding
borrowing by any subsidiaries of the Group.

e The Group provided guarantees to financial institutions in respect of
trading limits provided by them to its subsidiaries which are engaged
in the businesses of leverage forex trading and derivatives trading. The
amount of such guaranteed liabilities varies according to the value of
transactions.

Risk Management

Risk management is of fundamental importance to the business operation
of the Group. The major types of risk inherent in the Group's business are
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The
Group’s risk management objective is to maximise shareholders’ value
and reduce volatility in earnings while maintaining risk exposures within
acceptable limits.

The Group’s work in the area of risk management is led by the Risk
Management Group and the Credit Group and the Risk Management and
Compliance Department thereunder. This functional structure can assess,
identify and document the Group's risk profile and ensure that the business
units focus, control and systematically avoid potential risks in various areas
of business. On 1 January 2009, the Group set up a new post of Chief Risk
Officer to oversee risk management and internal control of the Group. The
following is a brief description of the Group’s approach in managing these
risks.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to advances to
customers, trade and other receivables, debt investments and unlisted
derivative financial instruments. In respect of advances to customers,
the Group requires collateral from customers before advances are
granted. The amount of advance permitted depends on the quality
and value of collateral provided by the customer. Any subsequent
change in value, as well as quality, of collateral is closely monitored in
order to determine whether any corrective action is required.
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BBER ()
(a) EERB(E)

Risk Management (continued)
(@) Credit risk (continued)

Trade and other receivables mainly arise from the Group's brokerage
business and investment activities. Receivables from securities
brokerage customers and brokers are normally due two days after
the trade date while deposits with brokers are repayable on demand.
The Group has established procedures in the selection of brokers with
sound credit ratings or reputation.

Investments in debt instruments and unlisted derivative financial
instruments are also governed by whether the issuers and the trade
counterparties respectively have sound credit ratings.

The Group has well defined policies in place on the setting and
approval of trading, credit and investment position limits in order to
manage its credit risk exposure and concentration. As at the balance
sheet date, the Group does not have a significant concentration of
credit risk other than:

(i)  the provision of advances to customers, which are collateralised
by unlisted debt securities issued by issuers with sound credit
ratings, of approximately HK$117 million (2007: approximately
HK$241 million);

(i) a margin collateral deposit of a remaining notional amount of
HK$354 million with a reputable financial institution with sound
credit rating; and

(iii)  the provision of advances of RMB200 million to customers (2007:
Nil) which are secured by residential use leasehold lands in the
Mainland.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any
collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset, including derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet
date deducting any impairment allowance. Except for the corporate
guarantee mentioned earlier, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the corporate
guarantee at the balance sheet date amounted to HK$170 million, as
set out in note to the financial statements 32(a). Further quantitative
disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from advances to customers are set out in note to the financial
statements 18.
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Risk Management (continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly assess current and expected liquidity
requirements and to ensure that it maintains reserves of cash,
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

Interest rate risk

The Group monitors its interest rate exposure regularly to ensure that
the underlying risk is monitored within an acceptable range. Most of
the Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities are on a floating rate
basis with maturity of one year or less.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from advances to customers and
bank balances.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk primarily stems from
holdings of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, leveraged foreign exchange trading and net investment in
foreign subsidiaries and associates. As most of the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities and net investment in foreign subsidiaries and
associates are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars or Renminbi, the management does not consider there to be
any significant currency risk. The Group has a policy not to maintain a
significant net position on leveraged foreign exchange trading and the
underlying exposure is monitored on a continuing basis.

Overall, the management monitors the Group’s foreign currency
exposure closely and would consider hedging significant currency
exposure should the need arise.
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Employees

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had 215 employees. Total staff costs
for the year under review amounted to approximately HK$211 million
as noted in the consolidated income statement. The Group ensures that
the remuneration packages for employees are fair and competitive and
employees’ remuneration (including salaries and bonuses) is linked to
their performance. Discretionary year end bonuses may also be paid to
employees based on individual performance. Other benefits to employees
include medical insurance, retirement schemes and training programs.
Directors and eligible employees of the Company may be granted share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the share option scheme approved by the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 May 2002.

Prospects

Over the past year, the significant fluctuation in financial market has had a
huge negative impact on the global economy. Although a series of rescue
packages have been launched by various countries, the effects on the
economies brought by the financial tsunami will manifest in 2009. More
time will be needed to recover from the credit crunch of the financial system
and enterprises. The financial and economic fundamentals in China are far
healthier than elsewhere, and the government has reduced the interest
rates and increased capital investment to stimulate the economy. However,
it is the first time for developed countries, such as the US, the EU and Japan,
to experience economic slowdowns (if not recessions) at the same time,
and China may be badly hit as its export sector plays an important role in
its economy. China might record the lowest economic growth in ten years
before those measures take effect. In conclusion, we are cautious about the
prospects in 2009, but remain optimistic over the economic development of
China in the long run.

After years of integration, the Group has strategically defined itself as “an
integrated investment bank with asset management and fund management
as primary segment and fee-based operations as complementary segment”,
focusing on direct investment, asset management and asset investment,
while at the same time growing the fee-based business comprising
investment banking (corporate finance) and securities brokerage (wealth
management). The “3+2" structure is the foundation of building up
the Group’s business. We will make use of our networks, capital and
investment experiences gained in the Mainland together with the injection
of a reasonable amount of internal resources to attract external capital. In
addition, we aim to further increase the stable management fee income and
investment yields through enlarging the scale of asset under management,
expanding product range and widening the clientele. Meanwhile, strong
risk management capability and a healthy balance sheet could also lay a
solid foundation for the development of the Group in 2009.
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Prospects (continued)

SOF I, under the management of the Direct Investment Division, will
continue to promote the development and listing of its investee projects
and reap profits by divesting as and when opportunities arise. CSOF and
the “parallel investment fund” will continue to demonstrate their expertise
and grasp the opportunity to speed up the investment process and identify
prime investment opportunities at reasonable prices.

The Asset Management Division will further consolidate its existing
management team, strive to launch new investment products and expand
the scale of asset under management.

In respect of the Asset Investment Division, Everbright ALAM is establishing
a fund targeting real estate projects in Mainland China, which is expected
to have significant progress within the first half of the year. At the same
time, it is proactively approaching overseas partners with fund management
expertise for the preparation of the infrastructure funds.

Regarding the Investment Banking Division, in addition to the sponsorship
of IPO projects, certain businesses that are less sensitive to market
fluctuations will also be developed, including asset valuation services, due
diligence services and financial advisory services for merger and acquisitions
and corporate restructuring, to bring in stable income.

The Brokerage Division will complete the upgrading of its online
trading system to expand the system’s processing capacity and enhance
communication with Everbright Securities to strengthen the mutual
cooperation between both parties. Further to its established business
structure, the Group will continue to seek suitable targets for acquisition at
reasonable costs with a view to establishing an operating platform in the
Mainland.

With Everbright Securities acting as an important partner of the Group to
tap into the securities market in the Mainland, there is ample room for
cooperation between both parties. Everbright Securities will continue to
speed up the process of its A-share listing, to further enhance its capital
strength and fully utilise its remarkable capabilities in risk management and
product innovation. In addition it will be actively involved in the preparation
for various new businesses, expand its business presence, and commence
substantial business partnership with the Group in due course.
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Prospects (continued)

Having undergone restructuring exercises over the years, Everbright Bank
has established itself as a national commercial bank with a competitive
edge. In line with the economic development plan of Mainland China,
Everbright Bank will continue to provide its conventional banking services.
At the same time, it will make use of its advantage in wealth management
to build up a brand of good quality. As Everbright Bank’s operations gather
strength and the quality of assets is enhanced, the shareholders’ value will
be improved.

In 2008, the Group implemented effective risk management and calmly
coped with market changes. The management and the executives proved
their worth in dealing with the volatility of the markets. The Group’s healthy
financial position and abundant cash (HK$4.4 billion) provide opportunities
for us to develop amid the declining market. The gradual growth of new
divisions such as the Asset Investment Division will bring in more stable
income and gain. Further, the economic development and the opening-
up of the domestic financial industry in Mainland China will provide
more opportunities for the Group’s development. We are confident our
shareholders will enjoy a better return on investment.

I would like to thank all our clients and shareholders for their support over
the past year. The Group is committed to providing convenient, professional
and pragmatic financial services, thereby creating greater value for our
shareholders and the community.

By order of the Board
Chen Shuang
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2009
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Governance Principles and Structure

The Company always aims to comply with established corporate governance
best practices, and the core value of the Company is to protect the interests
of its shareholders, customers, staff and other stakeholders. It is committed
to strictly abide by the laws and regulations of Hong Kong and observe the
rules and guidelines issued by the relevant regulatory authorities such as the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”). The Company also constantly
reviews its corporate governance practices, with a view to measuring up
to international and local best practices. One of the core values of the
Company is that the highest standard of integrity is essential to business
development.

The Board would like to announce that the Company has complied with
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“the Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Board

The Board is at the core of the Company’s corporate governance
framework, and there is a clear division of responsibilities between the
Board and the Management. The Board is responsible for providing high-
level guidance and effective oversight of the Management. Generally, the
Board is:

e to approve the Group’'s long term strategy and monitor the
implementation thereof;

e toreview and approve the annual business plan and financial budget;
e to approve the annual and interim reports;

e to review and monitor risk management and internal control;

e  to ensure good corporate governance and compliance; and

e to monitor performance of the Management.
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Board (continued)

The Board authorises the Management to carry out the approved strategies.
The Management is responsible for the day-to-day operation of the Group
and is required to report to the Board regularly. The Board has formulated
the Mandate of the Board and the Mandate of the Management Committee
respectively, which set out the circumstances under which the Management
should report to and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. The
Board regularly reviews the Mandates, and will update and amend them
when appropriate.

To comply with the Code, the positions of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are held by Mr. Tang Shuangning and Mr. Chen Shuang
separately. Their roles are distinct and are clearly established and stipulated
in the Board Mandate. In short, the Chairman is responsible for ensuring
that the Board properly discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good
corporate governance practices and procedures. As the Chairman of the
Board, he is also responsible for making sure that all Directors are properly
informed of important issues which the Company is focusing on and
that all directors receive accurate, timely and clear information. He is also
responsible for organising the business of the Board, setting its agenda and
ensuring its effectiveness. The Chairman facilitates the effective contribution
of the directors and the effective communication with the shareholders.
Mr. Zang Qiutao as the Deputy Chairman of the Board assists the Chairman
to oversee and gives guidance to the Management in order to enhance
the functions of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
leading the Management and implementing the important policies and
development strategies approved by the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for the day-to-day operation of the Group and regularly reports
to the Board.

Taken into account the market practices and international best practices
in corporate governance, the Board established 5 Board Committees to
carry out its responsibilities. They are the Executive Committee, Audit and
Risk Management Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Strategy Committee. In addition, the Board will, if
necessary, authorise an independent board committee comprising all
independent non-executive directors to review, approve and monitor the
connected transactions (including continuing connected transactions) to
comply with the requirements of relevant laws and regulations.
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Board Mandate

The Mandate of the Board contains the terms of reference of the Board
Committees. The Board Committees make recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters within their terms of reference, or make decisions
under appropriate circumstances within the power delegated by the Board.
Designated secretaries are assigned to all Board Committees to ensure that
they have adequate resources to discharge their responsibilities properly
and effectively. According to their mandates, the Board and the Board
Committees will review and evaluate their respective work processes and
effectiveness on an annual basis. The terms of reference of the Board as
well as the Board Committees was set out in the Board Mandate and can
be accessed via the Company’s website.

Currently the Board has 8 members, comprising 4 executive directors,
namely, Mr. Tang Shuangning, Mr. Zang Qiutao, Mr. Chen Shuang and
Mr. Tang Chi Chun, Richard; 1 non-executive director, namely, Mr. Wang
Weimin and 3 independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Ng
Ming Wah, Charles, Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John, and Dr. Lin Zhijun. Mr.
Richard Tang, Mr. Charles Ng and Dr. Lin Zhijun are directors with financial
management expertise. Over one-third of the members of the Board are
independent non-executive directors. The composition of the Board ensures
the independence and objectivity of the Board's decision-making process
as well as the thoroughness and impartiality of the Board’s supervision of
the Management. The Board acts honestly and in good faith. Its decisions
are made objectively and in the best interests of the Company, with a view
to maximising long-term shareholders’ value and fulfilling its corporate
responsibility to other stakeholders of the Company.

All the existing independent non-executive directors of the Company have
been appointed for a fixed term, with formal letters of appointment setting
out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. Pursuant to the
Articles of Association of the Company, all directors, including the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, shall retire by rotation at least once every three
years at annual general meetings and be eligible for re-election. All new
directors appointed by the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders
at the next general meeting.
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Board Mandate (continued)

Save as disclosed below, there is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)) among the
Board members. Mr. Tang Shuangning, Mr. Zang Qiutao and Mr. Chen
Shuang are also directors of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited,
the controlling shareholder of the Company. If a substantial shareholder
or director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board and general meeting, the relevant directors shall abstain
from voting and a Board meeting attended by independent non-executive
directors who have no material interest in the matter shall be held to discuss
and vote on the same.

The Company has in place an appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance policy to indemnify the directors for liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured under the policy are
reviewed on an annual basis.

To ensure that newly appointed directors have adequate understanding of
the Company’s business and operation, the Board has set up an induction
system for new directors.

A total of 5 Board meetings were held during the year. The meeting
schedule was prepared and approved by the Board at the end of the
previous year. Formal notices are sent to all directors at least 14 days before
the meeting. In general, the Board agenda and meeting materials are
dispatched to all Board members for review at least 3 working days before
the meetings. The agenda is approved by the Chairman and commented
by other Board members and the Management. The Board minutes are
detailed records of all the issues considered by the directors and the
minutes approved by all the Board members are properly kept by the
Company Secretary. Either the Chairman or the Deputy Chairman of the
Board will meet the independent non-executive directors in the absence of
the executive directors and the Management at least once a year. Individual
attendance records of the relevant directors in 2008 are set out in the table
at the last part of this report.
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Board Committees

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee, as delegated by the Board Mandate, assists the
Board to oversee the Company’s major affairs. Members will communicate
from time to time on major issues affecting the Company’s operations,
business and management, including reviewing and approving the
Group’s corporate goals, business plans and major business projects
submitted. Effective from 1 January 2009, Mr. Zang Qiutao replaced Mr.
Tang Shuangning as the Chairman of Executive Committee. The Executive
Committee currently comprises 3 members: the Deputy Chairman of the
Board, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee mainly assists the Board
in fulfilling its responsibilities relating to the supervision of the financial
statements, internal control, internal audit and external audit of the Group.
The Committee also assists the Board in performing its role over the Group
in, amongst others, the following areas:

e  to assure that the financial reports are accurate and comply with the
appropriate accounting standards and that the reporting procedures of
the Company’s financial reports are carried out;

e  to assure that the scope and guidance of the internal and external
audits are sufficient;

e to consider the qualifications and independence of external auditors;

e  to assure that adequate internal control measures are in place and
followed:;

e  to review and deal with the Company’s internal audit functions, the
effectiveness of the Company’s corporate governance structure and
implementation;

e to urge the Company to abide by any applicable laws and to comply
with regulations of the relevant regulators and to maintain the
business ethics;

e to make suggestions to the Board where necessary, and to carry out
duties within the delegated authority of the Board; and

. to meet the auditors, at least annually, in the absence of the
Management, to discuss matters relating to any issues arising from the
audit and any other matters the auditors may wish to raise.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit and Risk Management Committee (continued)

The work performed by the Audit and Risk Management Committee in
2008 included the review and, where applicable, approval of:

e the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2007 and the annual results announcement thereof, which were
recommended to the Board for approval;

e the Group’s interim financial statements for the six months ended 30
June 2008 and the interim results announcement thereof, which were
recommended to the Board for approval,

e the audit report and management letter submitted by the external
auditors;

e the quarterly risk assessment report submitted by Risk Management
Group;

e the re-appointment of external auditors, the audit fees payable to
external auditors for the annual audit and interim review; and

e the Group's internal audit plan and key areas of focus for the year
2008.

In addition, pursuant to paragraph C.2 of the Code, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the internal control systems of the Group with the assistance of the
Internal Audit Department. In the first half of 2008, KPMG was appointed
to conduct a COSO (“Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the
Treadway Commission”) analysis for the Group. The internal control review
of the Group covered all material aspects, including financial, operational
and compliance controls as well as risk management. Upon completion
of the review, the Audit and Risk Management Committee considered
that the key areas of the Group's internal control systems were reasonably
implemented and were able to prevent material misstatements or losses,
safeguard the Group’s assets, maintain appropriate accounting records,
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and generally fulfil
the internal control requirements of the Code. For detailed information on
this topic, please refer to the Internal Control section.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit and Risk Management Committee (continued)

The Audit and Risk Management Committee comprises 3 members, all
including the chairman are independent non-executive directors. The
committee is chaired by Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles who has extensive
experience in the financial and financial services industry. A total of 7 Audit
and Risk Management Committee meetings were held during the year with
an attendance rate of 100%. Individual attendance records of the relevant
members in 2008 are set out in the table at the last part of this report. The
committee’s terms of reference are available from the Company’s website.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in
nominating the right candidates for directorship and senior management
positions as well as evaluating the competence of the candidates to ensure
that they are in line with the Group’s overall development strategies. The
committee assists the Board in fulfilling its supervisory role over the Group
in, amongst others, the following areas:

e selection and nomination of directors, Board Committee members and
senior management members;

e the periodic review of the structure, size and composition (including
skills, experience and knowledge) of directors and Board Committee
members;

e  evaluation of the independency of the independent non-executive
directors; and

e make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Based on the successful experience in the recruitment of directors and
senior management, the Committee will first take into account the existing
skills, knowledge and experience of the Board and Board Committees,
and the business requirements of the Group in order to determine the key
requirements for the new director and objective criteria for selection. Such
criteria will include relevant expertise, integrity, industry experience and
independence. The work performed by the committee in 2008 included the
following:

e To consider matters regarding the appointment of the non-executive
director; and

e To consider matters regarding the appointment of the Company
Secretary.

Effective from 1 January 2009, Mr. Zang Qiutao replaced Mr. Tang
Shuangning as the Chairman of Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee currently has 3 members comprising Mr. Zang Qiutao, Mr.
Seto Gin Chung, John and Dr. Lin Zhijun. The independent non-executive
directors represent over half of the committee members. A total of 2
Nomination Committee meetings were held during the year with an
attendance rate of 100%. Individual attendance records of the relevant
members in 2008 are set out in the table at the last part of this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in
overseeing the Group’s human resources and remuneration policies. The
committee assists the Board in fulfilling its supervisory role over the Group
in, among others, the following areas:

e  setting of the overall human resources strategies, basic criteria and
objective of the remuneration scheme of the Group;

e approving remuneration, bonuses and other benefits in kind of
directors, Board Committee members and senior management;

e making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for all remuneration packages of the directors and senior
management;

e making recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration
packages of all executive directors and senior management;
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Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
performance-based remuneration of the Group by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to
time;

reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
compensation payable to executive directors and senior management
in connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment to ensure that such compensation is determined
in accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive;

approving the aggregate amount of the year-end bonus payable to the
staff of the Group, provided such amount is the same as or below that
approved by the Board, or to make recommendations to the Board
thereon; and

ensuring that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

The work performed by the committee in 2008 included the review and,

where applicable, approval of:

performance appraisal of the executive directors and senior
management for year 2007,

the proposal on staff bonus (including the senior management) for
year 2007 and salary adjustment for year 2008 for the Group;

the incentive scheme of the Group; and

the policies on performance appraisal of staff (including senior
management), annual bonus and annual salary adjustment.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

To ensure that the directors receive remuneration which is commensurate
with the time and effort they dedicate to the Group, the committee, in
proposing the remuneration of directors, makes reference to companies
of comparable business type or scale, and the nature and quantity of work
at both Board and Board Committees (including frequency of meetings
and nature of agenda items). The proposed remuneration will be put to
shareholders for final approval at general meetings. The Remuneration
Committee also determines the specific remuneration package of executive
directors and senior management, including share options and benefits in
kind. Currently the principal components of the Company’s remuneration
package for executive directors and senior management include basic
salary, discretionary bonus and other benefits in kind. A significant portion
of the executive directors’ or senior management'’s discretionary bonus is
based on the Group and the individual performance during the year. The
committee reviews and approves the annual and long-term performance
targets for senior management by reference to corporate goals and
objectives approved by the Board from time to time. The committee also
reviews the performance of the senior management against the targets set
on an ongoing basis, and reviews and approves the specific performance-
based remuneration of the senior management. The committee will seek
professional advice in appropriate circumstances.

Effective from 1 January 2009, Mr. Zang Qiutao replaced Mr. Tang
Shuangning as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee currently has 4 members comprising Mr. Zang
Qiutao, Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles, Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John and Dr. Lin
Zhijun. The independent non-executive directors represent over two-third of
the committee members. A total of 3 Remuneration Committee meetings
were held during the year with an average attendance rate of 100%.
Individual attendance records of the relevant directors in 2008 are set out in
the table at the last part of this report. The committee’s terms of reference
are available from the Company’s website.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee is responsible for reviewing the mid to long
term strategy and the business architecture of the Group and for making
suggestions to the Board. The Strategy Committee is chaired by Mr. Seto
Gin Chung, John and currently has 6 members: Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John,
Mr. Zang Qiutao, Mr. Chen Shuang, Mr. Wang Weimin, Mr. Ng Ming
Wah, Charles and Dr. Lin Zhijin. One Strategy Committee meeting was
held during the year of 2008. The focus of the agenda was to review the
strategic positioning of the Group.
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Board Evaluation

Each of the Board and Board Committees shall conduct a self- assessment
review of their own effectiveness at least once a year, and review and
amend as appropriate their terms of reference and working rules according
to the outcome of these self-assessments.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has devised special rules governing securities dealing of
directors in the “Employee Dealing Manual” which is more stringent than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the said manual
and the Model Code throughout the year of 2008.

External Auditors

Pursuant to delegated responsibility by the Board, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee reviewed and monitored the effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of KPMG, the Group’s external auditors, on
their audit procedures, and the results thereof were satisfactory. Upon
the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the
Board will propose that KPMG be re-appointed as auditors of the Group at
the Company’s 2009 annual general meeting. Subject to authorisation by
the shareholders, the Board will authorise the Audit and Risk Management
Committee to determine the remuneration of KPMG.

For 2008, the total fee charged by KPMG was HK$5,642,000 including
non-audit service fee of HK$1,480,000 for the review of interim financial
statements, internal control and risk assessment review and other services.
For 2007, the fee charged by KPMG for audit and non-audit services was
HK$3,146,000. The increase was mainly due to the change in the scope of
work, the Group’s expansion in operation and the increase in the cost of
human resources of the audit firm.

Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that the Group maintains sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard the Group's assets. The internal
control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely
eliminate the risks of system failure; and to assist in achieving the Group's
objectives. In addition to safeguarding the Group’s assets, it also ensures
the maintenance of proper accounting records and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations.
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Internal Control (continued)

The Internal Audit Department reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system in accordance with the annual internal audit plan
approved by the Audit and Risk Management Committee. The scopes of
these reviews cover all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management system governing various
business units and operation departments. The risks and controls are
identified primarily through reviews of the statutory books, minutes, policies
and procedure manuals and interviews with the management. Based on the
results of the risk and control identifications, the internal audit strategies are
formulated and performed by the Internal Audit Department. The results
of the reviews for 2008 were reported to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board on a quarterly basis.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Board considered
that the key areas of the Group’s internal control systems are reasonably
implemented, are able to prevent material misstatements or losses,
safeguard the Group’s assets, maintain appropriate accounting records
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and have fulfilled the
requirements of the Code regarding internal control systems in general.

In addition, the Group has established and implemented the following
internal control system:

e The Management established an organisation structure with different
hierarchy of duties, authorities and responsibilities of personnels;
formulated written policies and procedures to check and balance the
authorities of different departments; reasonably safeguarded the assets
and implemented the internal control measures of the Group; and
operated lawfully, in compliance with laws and regulations and under
effective risk control.

e The Management set up and continuously monitored the
implementation of the Group’s strategies, business plans and financial
budgets. The accounting and management systems in place provided
the basis for evaluating the financial and operational performance.

e The Group set up various risk management and human resources
management policies. Specific units and personnels were responsible
for identifying, assessing and managing all the major risks. These
include reputation, strategic, legal, compliance, credit, market,
operation, liquidity and interest rate risks.
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Internal Control (continued)

e The Risk Management Group (“"RMG") under the Management
Committee is responsible for discharging the core responsibility of the
risk control monitoring function of the Group. Members of the RMG
comprise various heads of departments and the risk management and
compliance department. The RMG is responsible for supporting and
assisting management in defining and assessing the key risk exposures
of the Group’s core business and conducting the co-ordination
thereon, to define, assess and record the risk structure of the Group
and make sure the relevant business units are aware of such issues.
The RMG reports to the Management Committee regularly. The RMG
also submits quarterly risk assessment report of the Group to the Audit
and Risk Management Committee for their review.

e The Audit and Risk Management Committee reviews the management
letter submitted by the external auditors in connection with the annual
audit. The Internal Audit Department is responsible for ensuring that
the recommendations are promptly followed, and will also periodically
report the status of the implementation thereof to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and keep the Management informed of the
same.

Communication with Shareholders and Shareholders’
Rights

The Board attaches a high degree of importance to continuous
communication with shareholders, especially the direct dialogue with them
at the Company’s annual general meetings. Shareholders are therefore
encouraged to actively participate in such meetings.

The Chairman of the Board, the Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee as well as the Chairman of the
Audit and Risk Management Committee and representatives of KPMG were
present at the Company’s 2008 annual general meeting held on 29 May
2008 at the J.W Marriott Hotel to respond to questions and comments
raised by shareholders.

The Company has also provided further information on the 2008 annual
general meeting in a circular to shareholders. This includes background
information to the proposed resolutions and information on the retirement
and re-election of directors in order to enable all shareholders to understand
their rights at the annual general meeting and to vote with sufficient and
necessary information.
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Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements

The following statement should be read in conjunction with the
auditor’s statement of their responsibilities as set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report contained in the 2008 Annual Report of the Company.
The statement is made to set out for the shareholders the respective
responsibilities of the directors and of the auditors in relation to the financial
statements.

The directors are required by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance to
prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company. The financial statements should be prepared on a
going concern basis unless it is not appropriate to do so. The directors have
the responsibility to ensure that the Company keeps accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and which enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The directors also have general responsibilities for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The directors consider that in preparing the financial statements in its
Annual Report 2008, the Company has adopted appropriate accounting
policies which have been consistently applied with the support of
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, and that all accounting
standards which they consider to be applicable have been followed.

Roles of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board believes that the independent non-executive directors play
an important role in corporate governance. They provide the necessary
checks and balances to ensure that the Group operates in a safe and sound
manner and that its interests are protected. The independent non-executive
directors also bring in external experience and make judgment objectively.
They are particularly important in performing a monitoring role. The Board
considers all its independent non-executive directors to be independent in
character and judgment. The Board has received written confirmation from
the independent non-executive directors of their independence pursuant
to the requirement of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.
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Roles of Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
The Board sets out a standard policy to determine the independence
of independent non-executive directors. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for evaluating the independence of the existing independent
non-executive directors as well as the candidates for independent non-
executive directors and making suggestions to the Board accordingly. For
independent non-executive directors who have served more than 9 years,
the Board will review the appointment and his/her independence every
year. Having confirmed his/her independence, the Board will pass a formal
resolution. The relevant independent non-executive director will be subject
to rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
and the Listing Rules.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board on all
governance matters. The directors have access to his services. He has the
relevant professional qualifications as stipulated by the Listing Rules. The
Company’s Articles of Association state that the appointment and removal
of the Company Secretary is a matter for the Board.
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Attendance HER
The attendance of the directors at board meetings and various committee KEFHFESENIETESNBE RO
meetings is set out bellow:

Audit & Risk

Management
Nomination Committee Remuneration
Board Committee Meeting Committee
Meeting Meeting EZ KRR Meeting
Directors/members By REZES CTEESS ¥MEaE
B '8 23 =k =E 23
Tang Shuangning /= &% 4/5 2/2 n/a 3/3
Zang Qiutao fEfE 5/5 2/2 n/a 3/3
Chen Shuang P 3& 5/5 n/a n/a n/a
Xu Haoming (Note 1) #4488 (Fft3E1) 2/2 n/a n/a n/a
Tang Chi Chun, Richard 5+1& 5/5 n/a n/a n/a
Wang Weimin (Note 2) F&TR (FzE2) 2/3 n/a n/a n/a
Ng Ming Wah, Charles = RA#E 4/5 n/a 717 3/3
Seto Gin Chung, John AlfE#x+ 5/5 2/2 7/7 3/3
Lin Zhijun #REE 5/5 2/2 717 3/3
Tung Iring (Note 3) EE 2 (HI3E3) 212 n/a 5/5 3/3
Attendance rate g =: 93% 100% 100% 100%

Notes: MI5E -

1. Mr. Xu Haoming resigned as executive director of the Company on 19 June 1. REAXREER-ZTZNFRATAHBHEAR
2008 AHITES -

2. Mr. Wang Weimin was appointed as non-executive director of the Companyon 2. EERELEER-ZZNFRATHLEEZEIR
19 June 2008. ARBZEAITES -

3. Madam Tung Iring resigned as independent non-executive director of the 3. EEZEXZITENRZZZTNFLATN\HEIAR
Company on 18 July 2008. AN FFHITES -
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Directors

Mr. Tang Shuangning

Chairman

Mr. Tang Shuangning, aged 54, is a member of the 11th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and the Chairman of the Board of the Group. Mr. Tang is also the
Chairman of China Everbright Group Limited, China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited, China Everbright Bank Company Limited and Everbright
Securities Company Limited. He is also the Director of Sun Life Everbright
Life Insurance Company Limited and the Chairman of China Everbright
International Limited (Stock Code: 257). He serves as the Vice Chairman of
the China Society for Finance and Banking and the Consultant of the China
Society for Investment. Prior to joining the China Everbright Group, Mr.
Tang was the Vice Chairman of the China Banking Regulatory Commission,
the Director-General of the Banking Supervision Department |, the Director-
General of the Currency, Gold and Silver Bureau and the Director-General
of the Credit Management Division of the People’s Bank of China. He holds
a Master’s Degree in Economics from China North-east University of Finance
& Economics. Mr. Tang has extensive knowledge and experience in banking
and finance management. He joined the Board in July 2007.

Mr. Zang Qiutao

Deputy Chairman

Mr. Zang Qiutao, aged 56, is Deputy Chairman of the Board of the Group,
the Chairman of the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
and the Nomination Committee as well as the member of the Strategy
Committee of the Company. Mr. Zang is the Vice Chairman of China
Everbright Group Limited and China Everbright Holdings Company Limited.
He is also the Chairman of China Everbright Industry Group Limited, China
Everbright Investment Management Corporation and the Vice Chairman
of China Everbright International Limited (Stock Code: 257). Mr. Zang
graduated from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences. He was formerly Division Chief of the State Economic Commission
and Deputy Division Director of the State Planning Commission. He joined
the Board in August 2007.
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Directors (continued)

Mr. Chen Shuang

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chen Shuang, aged 41, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group,
member of the Executive Committee and the Strategy Committee and the
Chairman of the Management Committee of the Group. Mr. Chen has
overall responsibility for the operation of the Group. He is also a director
and the General Manager of the Legal Department of China Everbright
Holdings Company Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Master of Law Degree from
East China University of Political Science and Law and a Diploma in Legal
Studies from The University of Hong Kong School of Professional and
Continuing Education. He is a qualified lawyer in the PRC and a senior
economist. Prior to joining China Everbright Group, Mr. Chen was the Chief
of the Legal Department of the Bank of Communications. He has over 16
years extensive experience in commercial banking and investment banking.
He joined the Board in August 2004.

Mr. Tang Chi Chun, Richard

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Tang Chi Chun, Richard, aged 47, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group. He has overall responsibility for supervising the financial resources
planning, allocation and control. Mr. Tang is a member of the Executive
Committee of the Board. Mr. Tang is a Certified Public Accountant and is a
graduate of the Accountancy Department, the Hong Kong Polytechnic. He
is @ member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 18 years
of experience in audit, investment, accounting and finance. Since 1990, Mr.
Tang had been engaged as department head of the financial and business
operations of various international financial institutions. He joined the
Group in September 2005 and joined the Board in July 2007.
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Directors (continued)

Mr. Wang Weimin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Weimin, aged 49, is a non-executive director and a member
of the Strategy Committee of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the Vice
President of Everbright Securities Company Limited. He was the Vice
Section Chief of Stock Trading Section of the Chengdu branch of Bank
of Communications, the Manager of Stock Trading Section of Chengdu
branch of Hai Tong Securities, the Manager of Human Resources Section of
Hai Tong Securities and the General Manager of the Stock Trading Section
of the headquarter of Hai Tong Securities. Mr. Wang holds a Master's
Degree in Business Administration for Senior Managers from Shanghai
Jiaotong University. Mr. Wang has extensive knowledge and rich experience
in securities, financial and corporate management. He joined the Board in
June 2008.

Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles, aged 59, was first appointed to the Board as an
independent non-executive director in November 1993 and has acted as the
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company
since August 1999. He is also the member of Remuneration Committee and
Strategy Committee. Mr. Ng graduated from Loughborough University in
England in 1972 with a B.Sc. degree in Electronic and Electrical Engineering
and from London Graduate School of Business Studies in England in 1974
with a M.Sc. degree in Business Studies. He is a director of Somerley
Limited, the principal business of which is the provision of corporate
financial advisory services. Mr. Ng has over 30 years of experience in
corporate finance and investment banking. Mr. Ng is also a non-executive
director of Goldlion Holdings Limited (stock code: 533) and an independent
non-executive director of each of Stone Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 409), Dalian Ports (PDA) Company Limited (stock code: 2880) and
China Molybdenum Co., Limited (stock code: 3993). In addition, Mr. Ng
holds a number of community service positions, including as a member
of the Council of Lingnan University of Hong Kong and a member of the
Board of Governors of the Hong Kong Arts Centre.
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Directors (continued)

Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John, aged 60, is an independent non-executive
director and the Chairman of the Strategy Committee of the Company. He
is also member of Audit and Risk Management Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Seto is a director of Pacific
Eagle Asset Management Limited. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Kowloon Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 34) and
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 47). He was the Chief
Executive Officer of HSBC Broking Services (Asia) Limited from 1982 to
2001. He was a non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (Stock Code: HK 388), from 2000 to 2003, a council
member of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong from 1994 to 2000, and was
the first vice chairman of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong from 1997 to
2000. He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from New York
University, USA and has over 31 years of experience in the securities and
futures industry. Mr. Seto joined the Board in April 2003.

Dr. Lin Zhijun

Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Lin Zhijun, aged 54, is an independent non-executive director of
the Company and member of Audit and Risk Management Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee.
Dr. Lin is a Professor and Head of the Department of Accountancy and
Law in Hong Kong Baptist University. He is also an independent director of
Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited (Stock Code: 3808), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Dr. Lin holds a Master’s degree in
Science in Accounting from the University of Saskatchewan in Canada and
a Doctorate’s degree in Economics (Accounting) from Xiamen University.
Dr. Lin worked as a Visiting Professor in the University of Hong Kong and
Tenured Professor in the Faculty of Management of Lethbridge University in
Canada. Dr. Lin worked at the Toronto office of an international accounting
firm (now known as “Deloitte”) in 1982-83 and he had also been a
professional consultant to an international law firm. Dr. Lin is also a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Australian Institute of
Certified Management Accountants. He is a member of various educational
accounting associations including the American Accounting Association, the
International Association for Accounting Education and Research and the
Hong Kong Association for Accounting Education. Dr. Lin is also an author
of a series of professional articles and books. Dr. Lin joined the Board in
September 2005.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEhEEEEAR

Senior Management

Mr. Tsang Sui Cheong, Frederick

Mr. Tsang Sui Cheong, Frederick, aged 49, is the Chief Risk Officer of the
Group. Mr. Tsang is a Chartered Financial Analyst and has been a director
of The Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts Limited since 2001. He is
a holder of a Bachelor’'s degree in Arts from Wilfrid Laurier University and
Master’'s degree in Arts from University of Alberta. Before joining the Group
in February 2000, Mr. Tsang had over 15 years of experience in the financial
industry.

Mr. Chan Kam Hop

Mr. Chan Kam Hop, aged 59, is an Assistant General Manager of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 2001 and was appointed as the
Managing Director of China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited and China
Everbright Forex & Futures (HK) Limited which are engaged in securities
brokerage, futures brokerage and leveraged foreign exchange trading
respectively. Mr. Chan has over 31 years experience in the financial and
brokerage business and has extensive experience in operation, sales and
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan had worked in another
reputable local brokerage firm for over 26 years.

Madam Gan Fang

Madam Gan Fang, aged 41, is an Assistant General Manager of the
Group, responsible for the investment banking business and venture
capital investments business of the Group. She holds a Master’s degree in
Economics from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law and a PhD
degree in Economics from Graduate School The Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences. She has over 10 years experience in investment banking and direct
investment. Prior to joining our Group, she worked at two well-known
financial institutions.

Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Ming Kin

Mr. Chan Ming Kin, aged 39, is the Legal Counsel and Company Secretary,
Head of Legal and Company Secretarial Department of the Group. Mr.
Chan holds a Bachelor of Law degree and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws of the University of Hong Kong. He also holds a Master of Corporate
Governance degree of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. As a qualified
solicitor in Hong Kong, Mr. Chan has more than 10 years’ experience in
private practice and as an in-house counsel. Mr. Chan is also an Associate
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Chan joined the Group in
December 2007 and was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Group
in June 2008.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors hereby present the Annual Report together with the audited
financial statements of China Everbright Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2008.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding and the provision
of financial services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.

Turnover and Contribution to Group Results
The turnover and contribution to operating results of the Group by activity
and geographical location are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out
on page 63 of this Annual Report.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.12 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: HK$0.10).

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group's turnover represents the aggregate of revenue from the sale
of trading securities, interest income, dividend income, rental income,
brokerage commission and service income. Accordingly, it is not practical
to state the percentage of the sales attributable to the Group's largest
customers and percentage of the purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest suppliers.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder holding more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital has an interest in the share
capital of any of the five largest suppliers.

Financial Summary
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the past
five financial years is set out on page 154 of this Annual Report.
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Directors’ Report
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Fixed Assets
Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Properties
Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31 December 2008
are set out on pages 155 to 156 of this Annual Report.

Subsidiaries and Associates

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31
December 2008 are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements
respectively.

Share Capital

During the year, the issued share capital of the Company had been
increased from 1,584,704,212 shares to 1,591,011,712 shares. The
Company issued 6,307,500 shares on the exercise of share options granted
to senior executives of the Group.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

Share Premium and Reserves
Movements in share premium and reserves during the year are set out on
pages 66 and 125 of this Annual Report.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2008 as
calculated under Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
amounted to approximately HK$327,239,000 (2007: HK$208,858,000).

Borrowings and Interest Capitalised

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within one year or on demand are
classified as current liabilities in the financial statements. No interest was
capitalised by the Group during the year.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

1.

After the Company’s acquisition of China Everbright Financial Holdings
Limited (“Everbright Financial”) on 31 December 1998, the provision
of financial services by Everbright Financial and its subsidiaries to China
Everbright Holdings Company Limited (“CE Holdings”, i.e the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company) and China Everbright
International Limited and their respective subsidiaries would constitute
connected transactions for the Company. The Stock Exchange has
granted a waiver to the Company from strict compliance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules in relation to connected transactions
subject to certain disclosure requirements (the “General Waiver”).

The details of these transactions during the year ended 31 December
2008 are set out as follows:

FENRERS

1.

R=ANANF+TZA=T—BARRFITK
WEPBERERZERBERAB (XS
B 2FEER  AREBREENBARN
FEXAREEERAR([ERER]) - B
ARRWRELZERIRR) - PEYEABERAE
RARRBEESEZMBARRESER
BRBRARRZBERS - BXFAER
ZEMERXHABT EHRPORER
ApmligTHe([—K#HR])  ERQF
ABITE THRBIRM -

BE-TT)\FHoA=T—HLLFES
WL S FEET -

2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Management of funds of BRI AEBHNES -
CE Holdings by way of WERREBAZAFLA
investing into China Ee—FEAERESR
Everbright Dragon Fund, ([EEEESEE]D) GED
a private fund established by
the Group (the “Dragon Fund
Investment”) (Note 1) - 158,042
Management fee received from TR B BERE A R & MUk ER
CE Holdings in respect of the HREENEEE GE1)
Dragon Fund Investment
(Note 1) 1,693 4,662
Performance fee received from CE RAEEESIRE M IE
Holdings in respect of the Dragon FREBMOERE (FE1)
Fund Investment (Note 1) - 25,155
Incentive fee income received from TR B BERE A IR & M UkER
CE Holdings for provision of RREENZBE (11)
investment management services
(Note 1) 7,766 19,291
Notes: (TE

1. Also refer to Note 31(a)(i) to the financial statements.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

2.

Apart from the above transactions under the General Waiver, set

out below is information in relation to certain continuing connected

transactions entered into by the Group and required under the Listing

Rules to be disclosed in the Annual Report of the Company:

(a)

On 5 February 2007, CEL Management Services Limited
("CELMS"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a tenancy agreement with Lane Bright Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CE Holdings, in respect of leasing office
premises situated on 36th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for a term of 2 years from 31
December 2006 to 30 December 2008 at a monthly rental of
HK$410,400, exclusive of rates and management fees and
other charges. The aforesaid tenancy agreement constituted a
continuing connected transaction of the Company pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

In 2008, the total rental expenses incurred by CELMS under
the aforesaid tenancy agreement amounted to approximately
HK$4,926,000. (Please also refer to note 31(a)(iv) of the Financial
Statements.)

According to an incentive agreement dated 25 May 2007 (“2007
Incentive Agreement”), which was announced on the same date,
China Everbright Assets Management Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, agreed to pay to an Investment Team
through China Forebright Investment Management Limited,
a limited company owned by the Investment Team, certain
Provisional Bonus and Actual Bonus for the period from 1 January
2007 to 31 December 2009 for providing of investment advisory
services to SOF, i.e. SeaBright China Special Opportunities (I)
Limited, a closed-end investment company with limited liability
incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands.

FENRERS (&)

2. BREAREBE-RBLETHRHI - Tl
DAKRERE EHRAREEFBAER
ARRFERANOFERERS

R-ZZZLFE_ARAB > AARHE
BB AR RIEREERBBRA
A AREEBRG D EXKEEZE
WEARIERERARSE —HEE
WE - HRAURBEBERBE T HRE
HEemPU36ENRAETWE - AH
WMFR-_ZZNF+_A=+—HZE
ZEEN\F+ZA=+81 - §AHA
BBEM410400T (T EM - BEE
RETCER) - BIE LTARA - LitiE
EMEBRKARNRFERERS -

RZEBEENF » X REREREH La
HEDTENHES I T AE 4,926,000
TC o (FE2BRESHREMI E31@)V) © )

BE-—HM_ZEELFRA-THH
AE W ([ 2007 i@ W )) - XA
HIMEE RS RARIZE2EMNE
Al FEXKREEEEBRARMR
EiBiBChina Forebright Investment
Management Limited(JE B & 2 &
B AR RZEZELF—H—H
Z_EENFTA=+—HMAIHEAR
EREBRINETENABEERE
BB RS  (ERMIIASOFE®RE
HIEEFZ ARG HIER - SOFESTE
SeaBright China Special Opportunities
(1) Limited * —"XUABREEARIFERX
TRBEZBSIMAZAOFARXE
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

2.

(continued)

(b) (continued)
The 2007 Incentive Agreement revised the formulae for
determination and payment of the bonus to the Investment Team
and the co-investment obligations of the Investment Team to
enhance risk management measure. The agreement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

During the relevant period, the total amount paid to the
Investment Team was HK$85,612,718.

On 16 July 2008, the Company announced that the 2007
Incentive Agreement has ceased to be a continuing connected
transaction of the Company.

In the opinion of the directors, these transactions were conducted on
normal commercial terms. The independent non-executive directors
have conducted the annual review of these connected transactions
and confirmed that such transactions were entered into on normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of business of the Group
and in accordance with the agreements governing these transactions.
Where there is no agreement, the transactions were entered into on
terms no less favourable than the terms available to independent third
parties, and the aggregate value of such transactions did not exceed
the limits set out in Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules.

The directors have requested the auditors of the Company to perform
certain agreed audit procedures on the continuing connected
transactions and have received a letter from the auditors as required
under Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
Report are as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Tang Shuangning, Chairman
Mr. Zang Qiutao, Deputy Chairman
Mr. Chen Shuang, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Tang Chi Chun, Richard, Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Xu Haoming
(Resigned on 19 June 2008)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Wang Weimin
(Appointed on 19 June 2008)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles
Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John
Dr. Lin Zhijun
Madam Tung Iring
(Resigned on 18 July 2008)

Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association provides that any
director appointed by the Board of Directors shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company, but shall be eligible for re-
election at such meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Weimin, as an appointed
director, shall retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Articles 120 and 121 of the Company’s Articles of Association provide that
one-third of the directors or the nearest number to but not exceeding one-
third of the directors shall retire from office and be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John and Dr. Lin Zhijun, being the longest
serving directors, shall retire by rotation. They will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Generally, the term of office for each independent non-executive director
is for a period of 3 years, and all are subject to rotation in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
of equity derivatives and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (as defined by Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO") as recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions required to be maintained under section 352
of the SFO are as follows:

1a. Long position in shares of the Company:

EERIFRTBRABRKAEZRND - HE
BER  BEFRAR

RZZEN\F+-A=1—8  ADAREES
RS GRS MEARE EEREELT
BABHERARERMARCHET  SEF
REBTHRABEAARREBEAR(TER
BH R EEPISEXVED) 2 BRI A R
PTETARES 2 BRMT

la. RAQARBZRE :

% of total

Personal Family Corporate issued shares

Total interests interests interests HERTRG

Name of director BEEfE ay BARR RS NEER BEEL
Tang Chi Chun, Richard & 200,000 200,000 - - 0.01%

1b. Long position in shares of China Everbight International Limited,
an associated corporation of the Company

1b. RADBRZHEATFEXAERERD
AzZRA

% of total

Personal Family Corporate issued shares

Total interests interests interests HEBRTRG

Name of director BEfS ay EARER RikfER ArER ot g
Chen Shuang BRER 100,000 100,000 - - 0.003%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short EERIEFTHASREZRE - B
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures R#7#%% - BFRAE(E)

(continued)

2. Long position in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the 2. RAQAREBERS REASTEIAZRA

Company
Number of
equity Number of

Nature of Date of  derivatives held underlying Total
Name of director interest Grant BERE shares Total Percentage
EEp B&EMtE RERH fTETAHE HERGEE By BEst
Chen Shuang Personal {E A 03.05.05 1,280,000 1,280,000 1,280,000 0.08%
3
Seto Gin Chung, John Personal {&A 05.05.05 320,000 320,000 320,000 0.02%
AR
Tang Chi Chun, Richard Personal {E A 27.09.05 400,000 400,000
B Personal & A 10.04.06 319,000 319,000 719,000 0.05%
All the above shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives were Pty RABEROBRAVTET A HRE
beneficially owned by the directors concerned. The percentage shown MEFE=RHFE ERABETZBDHMU
was calculated based on the number of issued shares of the Company as RABIRZZEENF+A=+—HE%
at 31 December 2008. TRHEBETE -
Details of the share options held by the directors and chief executives RARIEEREZETHABR B ZREE
of the Company are shown in the following section under the heading AR RR T REREER AT -
“Information on Share Options”.
As at 31 December 2008, save as disclosed herein, none of the RZZEZENFTA=T—HRILEES
directors and chief executives of the Company were interested in Gh s KARIBIEZALRBAESEMNMEE
short positions in the shares, underlying shares of equity derivatives ZEERFETHRABE R SOREELM
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation defined A ARBEENETETBRAEREER
under the SFO as recorded in the register of directors’ and chief KRB ST MEE RN R 2 - BEKRS
executives’ interests and short positions. BRALTE T AN ESR 2 KB
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short EERIEFTHASREZRG - B
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures M}z - BEFRAXE (&)

(continued)

3. Long position in underlying shares of equity derivatives of 3.

associated corporations

As at 31 December 2008, the following directors had personal interests
in options to subscribe for shares in China Everbright International
Limited (“CEIL"), an associated corporation of the Company. The
shares of CEIL are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

REBEAREBERY RATETIAZ

RE

R-BBNF+=A=+—8 UTFES
BA RS AT RBAR )2 BB AR E Y
REBERRAR(AER ) 2 BB

HERORE BB FT LT ©

Number of

underlying

Exercise shares of CEIL

price (ordinary shares)
Nature of (HKS) KRBz Total
Name of director interest THEE Date of Grant Exercise period HEROEE Percentage
EENE EEME (&7T) B AH TEH (ZER) BEOH
Zang Qiutao Personal 0.85 03.08.06 03.08.07-25.05.13 2,000,000 0.064%
EE aA 0.85 03.08.06 03.08.08-25.05.13 2,000,000 0.064%

Information on Share Options RREER

Information in relation to share options of the Company disclosed in  1Bi% Fm R BT EABRIENERINT

accordance with the Listing Rules was as follows:

1. Outstanding share options as at 1 January 2008: 1. RIBZENF-A—HERTENIRE:
Exercise
Date of price
Number Grant (HK$)
of options R Vesting period Exercise period TEE
AREHE RHBEH BHH T (&7T)
Chen Shuang 750,000 03.09.04 04.09.04-03.03.07 04.09.05-03.03.08 3.225
[ 1,280,000 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05.06-03.05.10 2.850
Seto Gin Chung, John 320,000 05.05.05 06.05.05-05.11.07 06.05.06-05.05.10 3.000
AfERT

Tang Chi Chun, Richard 400,000 27.09.05 28.09.05-27.03.08 28.09.06-27.09.10 3.100
& 319,000 10.04.06 11.04.06-10.10.08 11.04.07-10.04.11 4.800
Total employees (Note 1) 500,000 03.09.04 04.09.04-03.03.07 04.09.05-03.03.08 3.225
EEmBE (M) 2,812,500 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05.06-03.05.10 2.850
410,000 04.07.05 05.07.05-04.01.08 05.07.06-04.07.10 3.135
3,700,000 10.04.06 11.04.06-10.10.08 11.04.07-10.04.11 4.800

Note: BsE -

1. Mr. Guo You, resigned as director of the Company on 12 October 2007
and his options were classified under “Total employees”.
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Information on Share Options (continued)
2. Outstanding share options as at 31 December 2008:

RAREER(®)

2. RIEBEENE+ZA=ZT—HBERITHEN

RRE

Exercise

Date of price

Number Grant (HK$)

of options AR Vesting period Exercise period TEE

AREHE RHBEH B R (&)

Chen Shuang 1,280,000 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05.06-03.05.10 2.850

PRI

Tang Chi Chun, Richard 400,000 27.09.05 28.09.05-27.03.08 28.09.06-27.09.10 3.100

& 319,000 10.04.06 11.04.06-10.10.08 11.04.07-10.04.11 4.800

Seto Gin Chung, John 320,000 05.05.05 06.05.05-05.11.07 06.05.06-05.05.10 3.000
AfERF

Total employees 132,500 03.05.05 04.05.05-03.11.07 04.05.06-03.05.10 2.850

BERNEEY 160,000 04.07.05 05.07.05-04.01.08 05.07.06-04.07.10 3.135

1,522,500 10.04.06 11.04.06-10.10.08 11.04.07-10.04.11 4.800

3. No share options were granted during the year ended 31

December 2008.

4. Number of share options exercised during the year ended 31

3. BE-ZEZN\F+-A=+—HLFEX

ERLARE -

4. BE-ER/\F+-A=+T-HLFER

December 2008: TENRREZE :
WA Closing
Exercise price**
price (HK$)
(HKS) hEEES
Date of Grant No. of Shares TEE W rE**
i AH P8R (L) ()
Chen Shuang PR 2% 03.09.04 750,000 3.225 16.160
Total employees REMEE 03.09.04 500,000 3.225 19.920
(See Note 1 above) (R EaffizEr) 03.05.05 2,680,000 2.850 17.344
04.07.05 250,000 3.135 22.000
10.04.06 2,127,500 4.800 12.858

**  The weighted average (“WA") closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised.

*x o KRB ERRABRRETE R B Z AT

RFUTE -
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Information on Share Options (continued)
5. No share options were cancelled during the year ended 31
December 2008.

6. Number of share options lapsed during the year ended 31

REREER (8
5. BE-FF/\Ft-A=t-HLFER
3 FRE GH R AR

6. BE-TT/\F+-A=T-HLFER

December 2008: KA BRERE -
Date of Grant No. of options
i ge =R AREEE
Total Employees EERRE 10.04.06 50,000

7. Valuation of share options
The fair value of share options granted is measured using a Binomial
Option Pricing Model based on the volatility of the Company’s share
price immediately preceding the date of grant, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted.

The Group amortises the fair value of share options granted to
employees as an expense in the income statement in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payments”. Details of the underlying
accounting policy are set out in note 2(q)(ii) to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2008, none of the directors,
the chief executives or their respective associates had any interest in the
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations or in any
arrangements to which the Company is a party to purchase shares of the
Company or any other corporate body.

Information on Share Option Scheme

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 24 May
2002, an ordinary resolution was passed to adopt a Share Option Scheme
(“the Scheme”).

A summary of the Scheme disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules is as
follows:

1. Purpose of the Scheme:
To provide an incentive or reward to eligible persons for their
contribution and continuing efforts in promoting the interests of the
Group.
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Information on Share Option Scheme (continued)

2.

Participants of the Scheme:
Any employee(s) including any director(s) of the Company or any
subsidiary or associated company.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
and percentage of issued share capital as at 31 December 2008:
99,711,171 (6.27%)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme:
The maximum number of shares (issued and to be issued) in respect
of which options may be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company (whether exercised, cancelled
or outstanding) to any participants in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares from time to time
unless such grant has been duly approved by ordinary resolution of the
shareholders in general meeting.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:
The exercise period of options ranges from 1 to 4 years.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised:

The vesting periods ranges from 1 to 2.5 years from the date of the
granting.

(a) The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option:
HK$1.00

(b) The period within which payments or calls must or may be
made:
Within 30 days after the date of offer

() The period within which loans for such purposes must be
repaid:
N/A

RRETEER (8

2.

6.

ZETEINSRE

AR B R E A E AR E QAR 2 E
MEENKEZESE -

ZA BRI FRTHNROBERER-Z
ENF+ZA=+-BEERTREANE
ot 199,711,171 (6.27%)

ZEtEP RS REEERES LR :
RIBZET 8 R A R AR E A R A AT 2
i AME(E 1218 B iR R R 2 B E R H R
PBiE(BREITE S AITES)
BRIFEARRBIRRABIRA G AT BIR
mERLEAME  SAEBRZRO&EZH
B(BREHTRETEITROEBB )T
FBAAAR IR EITRNAEZ1%
ARIE R R RR R0 A9 AR -
RERETHEHRE—FENFETE -
AREBITEZALAFENREHR

IR AR A B B —
YT o

(a) REREZAREFANZEHE
PE#1.007T
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Information on Share Option Scheme (continued)

8. The basis of determining the exercise price:
The exercise price is determined by the directors which shall be at least
the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant; and (iii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.

9. The remaining life of the Scheme:
The Scheme will expire on 24 May 2012.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, existed at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not terminable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation other than the normal statutory compensation.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2008 the following persons had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which must be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the group:

FERR

RZZEZN\F+-_A=1t—8 "  TIALEERR
ARy MR D P A AREBEES RBE K
BIEXVERSE2 R B30 B AN QA Z Em ok
B RERAHEEBEEWHENETAER M
AEETAEMKRE AR ZBRAE EREZ(E
2RI AN EI{ES % 3k A E#E s

Long Position BHAzRE
% of total
No. of shares issued shares
Name of shareholder beneficially held EE 21T
RREHE EXEERAEE BAEBDL
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited (Note) 867,119,207 54.50%
PRI REBER AR (FIFE)
Datten Investments Limited (Note)(FfzE) 867,119,207 54.50%
Honorich Holdings Limited 867,119,207 54.50%

Note: Honorich Holdings Limited (“Honorich”) is wholly-owned by Datten

Investments Limited (“Datten”) which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited (“Holdings"”). Accordingly,
Datten and Holdings are deemed to have the same interests in the shares of
the Company as Honorich.

Save as disclosed above as at 31 December 2008, the directors are not
aware of any other persons who had an interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the
Company’s securities during the year.

Honorich Holdings Limited([Honorich)JyeA
Datten Investments Limited([ Datten]) 2 & #
£ - MDatten IR EX AEBAR AR ([HK
EH])22EWB AR - HitDatten kX A%
B AR BRAF RSB EHonorich#H[E
ZHERS o

B EMFHEEIN R-ETN\F+_A=1—
A EEYTHBEEAEMALRARBRN
KRR B A R IR R R 5 R B R BB XV
ME2RFIDMAEARRB 2 BE SRR - =X
B ERRBEREEHEEN - AIEEAERL TER
SEETAKE AR ZBRRAE LRR 2 T85!
PRATE(E5 % SA Ehgss o

BE  HEIBWEXATZES
ARERFRLEEEA S 2B - ARFRHA

PRI B A TR LRI B o S A AT 2 4
AEH -
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Corporate Governance

The Company believes that upholding good corporate governance measures
is important to ensure effective internal control and to protect the long
term interest of the shareholders, customers, staff and the Company. The
Company complies strictly with the applicable laws and regulations and
codes and guidelines of the regulatory authorities, and strives to follow the
best international and local corporate governance practice and to develop
and improve the corporate governance practices of the Company.

For further details, please refer to the section “Corporate Governance
Report” of this report.

Auditors

KPMG were first appointed auditors of the Company in 2005 upon the
retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers. KPMG retire, and being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

During the year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee comprised Mr.
Ng Ming Wah, Charles, Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John, and Dr. Lin Zhijun. The
Committee is chaired by Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles. All members of the
Committee are independent non-executive directors.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Management have
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters including
the review of the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2008. The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and a summary of the duties discharged in 2008
have been set out in the section “Corporate Governance Report” of this
Report.
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Retirement schemes

The Company provides retirement benefits to all local eligible employees
under an approved defined contribution provident fund (“the ORSO
Scheme”). The ORSO Scheme is administered by trustees, the majority of
which are independent, with its assets held separately from those of the
Company. The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from employees
and employers at 5% each based on the monthly salaries of employees.
Forfeited contributions may be used to reduce the existing level of
contribution by the Company.

Since 1 December 2000, the Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the ORSO Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a monthly relevant income cap of HK$20,000.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China are
members of the retirement schemes operated by the local authorities. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to these schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to these schemes is the required contributions under the
schemes.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year ended 31 December 2008
amounted to approximately HK$1.68 million.

Competing interest

Insofar as the directors are aware, Mr. Ng Ming Wah, Charles, an
independent non-executive director of the Company, is a director of
Somerley Limited, a specialist financial services company principally engaged
in advising listed companies in Hong Kong on mergers and acquisitions,
equity capital raising and regulatory compliance matters, which may be
considered to compete or likely to compete with some of the investment
banking businesses of the Group. However, the directors consider that
the likelihood of a conflict of interest occurring is minimal since most
of the Group's relevant business decisions are handled at the subsidiary
level. If and when an occasion arises which may lead to actual or potential
competition, it is intended that Mr. Ng will make a full declaration of his
interests (if any) and abstain from the discussion and decision making
process(es) relating thereto.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of
this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Tang Shuangning
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2009

60 China Everbright Limited F1 B8y KRR AR A T

RANRBIFRE
REARBAFEBRBZEN  URRARFRES
P RANFHRTIZ B - AABER EHRA
FIARE 2 RBRFFIE -

p

EEEET
Eegs
ESEH

a

B —ETAF=A=+<H



Independent Auditor’s Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF CHINA EVERBRIGHT LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Everbright
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 63 to 153, which comprise the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MosE BT T ST
(Restated)
(&%)
Turnover | 3 4,143,448 4,584,025
Operating income LS 3 343,354 730,844
Other net income E U A 3 997,571 1,502,031
Staff costs BTEH (210,745) (299,287)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses ?ﬁ%&}é&i#j%ﬁ)ﬂ 12 (10,376) (7,082)
Impairment loss on available-for sale securities #{#ttHE B FFREE R (260,091) =
Other operating expenses HAb et &R (149,413) (171,307)
Profit from operations 4 &5 F | 5 710,300 1,755,199
Finance costs USER 6 (6,921) (122,780)
Gain on deemed disposal of interest JEEE HEBS N A
in associates RS EF - 924,503
Share of profits less losses of associates FE(LEG = A T B AR EE 480,185 2,906,226
Profit before taxation FR TR B & F 1,183,564 5,463,148
Income tax Fi18 8 (208,967) (197,724)
Profit after taxation ey ek e 974,597 5,265,424
Attributable to: ESEEHA ¢
Shareholders of the Company /NG S 1,014,832 5,005,592
Minority interests DB IR R RE S (40,235) 259,832
974,597 5,265,424
Appropriations: RANFIREE R ERT RS
Dividends attributable to the year: FARABPIRE - 10
Interim dividend per share paid BT R B HK$0.083& 7T -
Final dividend per share proposed Bk REBRR B HK$0.125& 5t HK$0.10/& 7T
Earnings per share AR Z A 11
— Basic —HAK HK$0.639& 7T HK$3.1697% 7T
— Diluted — 8 HK$0.637%& T HK$3.1447% 7T
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Balance Sheets
HERER

As at 31 December 2008 R=ZFZT\F+=-A=+—H

Group Company
£ EON
31December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF e 3 “EENF ZETLHE
+=ZA=+-8B ft=ZA=t—H +=ZA=+-A +=A=1+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Py BT BETT BETR BETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BT EE 12 271,541 271,280 700 1,164
Investments in subsidiaries KB BHERE 13(a) - - 1,388,684 1,604,181
Amounts due from subsidiaries TEUTHTB A R FIB 13(b) - - 3,015,220 2,954,359
[nvestments in associates BENEIRE 14(a) 4,888,791 4,470,959 1,784,192 1,784,192
Available-for-sale securities HHHE EA 15 4,082,180 9,045,828 2,687,314 3,805,890
Financial assets designated at fair value ETEEBBIESIARK
through profit or loss NEEENSREE 16 196,503 665,434 - =
Intangible assets B E 17 6,191 1,250 - =
9,451,206 14,454,751 8,876,110 10,149,786
Current assets RBEE
Advances to customers ZEER 18 660,928 1,600,458 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A BlZA 13(b) - - 841,750 250,000
Debtors, deposits and prepayments RS - 2e RENR 19 428,287 1,346,319 1,004,940 2,654,793
Trading securities R HE%E 20 96,784 1,057,748 - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 21 4,418,671 1,826,923 164 228
5,604,670 5,831,448 1,846,854 2,905,021
Current liabilities nBaE
Creditors, deposits received AR - Eddze
and accrued charges LFERER 22 (275,061) (815,107) (1,918) (2,800)
Trading securities R5BH 20 (421,052) (542,207) - =
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENHTB AR IR 13(c) - - (2,045,901) (3,442,029)
Amounts due to associates FEfHBE SN B ZIA 14(d) (438) (438) (438) (438)
Amount due to ultimate holding company [ &R A r) 2 ZU8 31(b) (63) = - =
Provision for taxation TiIBAER 24(a) (533,117) (489,055) - -
(1,229,731) (1,846,807) (2,048,257) (3,445,267)
Net current assets / (liabilities) FhBEE/ (8F) 4,374,939 3,984,641 (201,403) (540,246)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 13,826,145 18,439,392 8,674,707 9,609,540
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Balance Sheets
EERER

As at 31 December 2008 R=ZFZN\F+=-A=+—H

Group Company
rEE LN
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007

—EE0\F LA —EENE “BRLF
t=A=t-B tZA=t-B +=A=t+-B +ZA=t-H

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BizE BETT BT BT BT
Non-current liabilities FrBaE
Notes payable ENZE 23 (75,959) (42,787) - -
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 24(b) (250,298) (899,021) (21,256) =
(326,257) (941,808) (21,256) -
NET ASSETS BEE 13,499,888 17,497,584 8,653,451 9,609,540
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RAR G
Share capital FRA 25 1,591,012 1,584,704 1,591,012 1,584,704
Reserves i 26 11,608,081 14,774,268 7,062,439 8,024,836
Total equity attributable to BEARA R RRER
shareholders of the Company 13,199,093 16,358,972 8,653,451 9,609,540
Minority interests PERRES 300,795 1,138,612 - =
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 13,499,888 17,497,584 8,653,451 9,609,540

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March A =ZEEHE= A=+ NBREE S & LI

2009 and signed on behalf of the Board by: FIBVW A TEERREETSRE .
Tang Shuangning Chen Shuang

Ees PR 3R

Director Director

EFE BEFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAEREPE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 & Z—

ZENF+ZA=T—HLFE

Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

BENADARE
Option  Investment Capital
premium revaluation redemption Minority
Share Share  reserve  reserve  reserve  Goodwill Capital  Exchange  Retained interests Total
capital  premium  FRE RE R reserve  reseve  rfeserve  eamings Total S8 equity
& RAEE EERE  EfRG  RORE HERE  EARG  EXRF  REEA g BREEER  ERAH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
AETr  AETr  BETn BT BN AT BBt Mt BT BT BT BT
Asat 1 January 2008 “EEN\E-A-B 1584704 5692367 14451 579,646 2084 (94395 109714 287880 3794621 16358972 1138612 17497584
Exchange rate adjustments ERAE - - - - - - - 25,831 - 25,831 (1560) 2427
Deficit on revaluation, netof ~ Ef&HfE -
deferred tax ﬁiﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁ - S - (2.205826) - - - - - (2205826)  (282,330) (2,488,156)
Release upon impaiment of ~ Bfki4ER
available-for-sale securities BERR - - - 37,568 - - - - - 37,568 - 37,568
Share options forfeited HERLETARE - - (50) - - - - - 50 - - -
Shares issued under share option R AMRIE: T EIE/TRA
scheme 6,308 25,863 (9,516) - - - - - - 22,655 - 22,65
Release upon disposal of HERHHESS
avallable-for-sale securities bE) - - - (1,707,639) - - - - - (1,707,639  (169,668) (1,877,307)
Increase in exchange reserve  NEERAIREZES
on interest in associates ﬁﬁiﬂﬂu - - - - - - - 4R - 4R - 438
Share of investment revaluation  FF{AEEE N A Z R E
reserve of associate mﬁﬁﬁ U - - - (334,790) = = = = - (334790 - (334790
Net divestment by minority PERRFRE
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (344.004)  (344,024)
Equity settled share-based U EUPA
transactions KRS - - 1,160 - - - - - - 1,160 - 1,160
Dividends paid BiRE = - - = = = - - (286,108) (286,108 - (286,108)
Profit for the year TR - - - - - - - S 01482 1014832 @025 94597
As at 31 December 2008 R-ZBN\E
T-A=t-H 1591012 5718230 6,045 1585959 2984 (9243%5) 109714 586,149 4523395 13,199,093 300,795 13,499,888
Representing; BT
Company and subsidiaries ARAIREMBAR 1,591,002 5718230 6,045 1592670 2984 (924,395 10,000 33269 1508322 9538137 300795 9838932
Associates VN - - - (6,711) = = 99714 552,880 3,015,073 3,660,956 - 3,660,956
As at 31 December 2008 R-ZBN\E
T-A=t-H 1591012 5718230 6,045 1585959 2984 (9243%5) 109714 586,149 4523395 13,199,093 300,795 13,499,888
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Cﬁonsqlki(\jat;ed Statement of Changes in Equity
ey ot LIES

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

EEREAARR
Option  Investment Capital
premium  revaluation redemption Minority
Share Share  reserve  reserve  reserve  Goodwill Capital  Exchange  Retained interests Total
capital  premium  FRE k& R reserve  reserve  rfeserve  eamings Total S8 equity

By BrER EERE  EfEBE  RORRE  ERERE  ERBE  ERBR  RERA At REER  EEedt
HKS000  HK$00D  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS0  HKS'00D  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
BETT  RETR  ERTT  B%Tn  RbTr  BMTn ARt TR RRTn BT AT ERTr

Asat 1 January 2007 “E5tE-H-A 1,569,003 5,641,148 28702 1,097,537 2984 (3672,032) 109,714 62,602 1535662 6375320 254,847 6,630,167
Exchange rate adjustments ExEH - - - - - - - 4918 - 4918 - 4918
Surplus on revaluation, netof ~ Ef5(E -

deferred tax ERLH e - - - 4686933 - - - - - 4,686,933 560,332 5,247,265
Share options forfeited AL B TAmE = = (1,004) = = = = = 1,004 = = =
Shares issued under share option 17 s+ 2l

scheme Bk 15,701 51,219 (20,162) - - - - - - 46,758 - 46,758
Release upon disposal of HERHERS

avalable-for-sale securities e - - - (298,803) - - - - - (298.803) - (298.803)
Increase in exchange reserve on - RESE R AIRE Z[E R

interest in associates EEEm = = = - - - - W34 - M4 - U134
Share of investment revaluation ~ FAESE N a]ZiRE

reserve of associate E - - - 8730 - - - - - 218730 - 28730
Net investment by minority PERRFRE

shareolders - - - - - - - - - - 63,601 63,601
Equity settled share-based s A

transactions R 5 - - 6,915 - - - - - - 6,915 - 6,915
Release upon deemed disposal ~ FFEEHEBE A

of an associate e - - - 32,249 - 2741637 - (26,874)  (2,747,637) 5375 - 5375
Profit for the year RERF = = = = - - - - 5005592 5005592 259832 5265424

As at 31 December 2007 RZZELE
+-A

=t-H 1,584,704 5,692,367 14,451 579,646 2984 (924395 109714 287,880 3794621 16358972 1138612 17,497,584
Representing; BT
Company and subsidiaries ARAIREMBAR 1,584,704 5692367 14,451 5,468,567 2,984 (924,39) 10,000 7438 1259733 13115849 1,138,612 14,254,461
Associates BER - = - 38019 = = 99714 280442 2534888 3243123 - 34313
As at 31 December 2007 RZEELE
T-A=1-H 1,584,704 5,692,367 14451 5,796,646 2984 (924395 109,714 287880 3794621 16358972 1,138,612 17,497,584
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

meRTNER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENEF T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt BET T BT T
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM RETHEEZRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R (Rd) BE 36 1,541,645 (952,342)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchase of fixed assets HBEETEE (14,913) (15,877)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEETEEEMSIIE 7,304 3
(Increase)/ decrease in deposits pledged FEEIR 2 1758
(), wd (191,945) 168,099
Purchase of available-for-sale securities EEHEREERS (577,760) (41,567)
Purchase of financial assets designated BT ARBEZR A
at fair value through profit or loss REATFEENSHEE - (36,250)
Net cash paid on acquisition of subsidiaries BAMNB AR X MIRE F5 (613) =
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries L EMB AR TS RIE 25 244,655
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEHHEIEE B AFMSIE
securities 1,879,303 687,085
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEFE E AR B TE R LA St
designated at fair value through profit AT EENCREEMS
or loss FIE 208,449 -
Bank interest received BYERTTHIE 50,490 73,949
Dividends from investments in securities BUEARERE 38,169 71,015
NET CASH INFLOW FROM INVESTING RETHEEZRS
ACTIVITIES TAHEE 1,398,509 1,151,112
NET CASH INFLOW BEFORE RMETBHARESRAFHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,940,154 198,770
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

e RER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BosE BT T BT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Issue of ordinary shares BT BRERG 22,655 46,758
Issues of shares in subsidiaries to minority BB AR 2 Eh T
shareholders DERRE 76,761 311,300
Redemption of shares by minority LB AG R BB BIA% 17D
shareholders (328,225) (247,699)
Repayment of loans from ultimate holding EEERTHLIERAT
company - (439,773)
Dividend paid to minority shareholders RS S F D EAG R (133,012) (50,706)
Loans from minority shareholders VHIRRE R 62,909 =
Dividends paid BRI E (286,108) =
Issue of notes BITER 49,999 =
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ®REEFEBHELZRE
ACTIVITIES TR (535,021) (380,120)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERBFSEEYZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #in, (Bd) B 2,405,133 (181,350)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERBESEEY
Beginning of year FHEERR 1,446,953 1,606,296
Exchange rate adjustments Rk (5.330) 22,007
End of year FRERR 3,846,756 1,446,953
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF RERBESEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BREE D AT
Bank balances and cash — general accounts  $R{T4E8ARIRE — —REEF 4,418,671 1,826,923
Deposits pledged R 2 73K (571,915) (379,970)
End of year FREERH 3,846,756 1,446,953
Cash flow from operating activities include: — R&HEENFFEL VIR 2R EHE -
Interest received on advances to customers A& B UWEE = A
and others K E A 86,965 274,939
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
reERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group acquired controlling interest in several
subsidiaries. The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as
follows:

BAKEAF

RAEE - REEIE A E A R R b AR o
FIBABESAERENRFEDNT ¢

2008 2007
—EEN\F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Nets assets acquired: BAFEE :
Fixed assets BEE&E 807 -
Debtors, deposit and prepayment FEUERSR - & RIBRFK 1,237 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIRSEEY 5,979 -
Creditors, deposits received JEMERFR « BEUUIRE
and accrued expenses MIERRE A (4,787) =
Net assets acquired BAFEE 3,236 =
Share of net assets by minority interest VYR REFEE (1,585) -
Goodwill on acquisition EAEE 4,941 -
Total cash consideration paid TR S8R 6,592 =
Less: cash of the subsidiaries acquired B BAWNBARNIRE (5,979) -
Net cash paid on acquisition of subsidiaries BAMB AN RE 613 -
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES HE S F
During the year, the Group disposed several subsidiaries. The fair value of ~ AARE » AEBHELIWE AR FILEEE
assets and liabilities disposed are as follows: FEaBMAFELDT ¢
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR AERIE 25 247,042
Less: Cash of subsidiaries k- [MBATIHIRS - (2,387)
Net disposal proceeds F & TS KA 25 244,655
Less: Available-for-sale securities k- BHIEEES - (10,604)
Other debtors and prepayment H b pE U BR FR R FEAT R - (5,186)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &R B A Fl e 25 228,865
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ERR Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE—TZTN\F+_A=+—HILFE

1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Everbright Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in Hong
Kong with its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The directors of the Company consider China Everbright
Holdings Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong,
to be the ultimate holding company of the Company and Honorich
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
to be the immediate holding company of the Company. Neither of

them provide financial statements for public use.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company, through its subsidiaries and associates, is principally
engaged in investment activities and the provision of financial services.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2(2)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

FEXK
FEEARIZERERAR([ARA]) 2 —ME
ERBFMEZH AT o KRR ZBRHR
BEBERSMBRAR LT - XARE
ERABERBEMALNFRANXKREES
PRABIBARNAZ BLIER AT - MR
B 4 R R B B A 32 2 Honorich Holdings
Limited | AR R T2 R EERAT o IbW
KA RNDR BIREM B mER G ARER -

ARBIZEBRBR/NEER - ARAL
BEREWNBARRBERR  £TTXIER
REEDRIRHRESRRE 2 E -

FEETEE

(a) W&iEsIEH
ABRETIZRE RGN A S RMA
BEREKEBTBHRELD (R 5RE
EREEMNERNCEBY B RESE
) (BEEHERDKRE)RR -
RIZSE=XCEYNR - R DI E N
ARGV ZIRTE © LLIN - NIRRT
e (BEEMARXHARARES L
MARADEBNRERE - NEEFRA
EEBEEERBINMNT

BAREGMASDEBEME THAI R
REFT2BEMHEREED - ZEE
ABUBREENRAEERARAS
18 & 51 HA PR & R A4 2% sk AT 4R AT 3%
o MEE2(2) 8B B RERZFHER
MEHHEM S BERES) - HEAK
MBREARR S BB E S
I AL B E BR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i e N

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in
associates.

The measurement basis used in preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties (note 2(h)); and

— financial instruments classified as trading, financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss or available-
for-sale securities (note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

China Everbright Limited /1 B3¢ KRB PR A A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ERR Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE—TZTN\F+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and controlled entities

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account. An investment
in a subsidiary is consolidated from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising from
intragroup transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealized gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by
the Group, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries.
Minority interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Minority interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year
between minority interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, are charged against the Group’s
interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment to cover
the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the
Group's interest is allocated all such profit until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

2. FESTHBEE®)
(0 MEARRZGISE

MERRRIEAASEIEHNER -
EAEEEREIEZERNYBR
REREK - WU ER S PG F
@ AIRERHE S EEES - 7
TENBEREESBREETE LM
BRAEGFENEERE - NI
ZHBRRIRE - RRER A XS
HEEEEHRIEABAALE T
WERA - REANBEHREZXH RIS
PRERBICRGEEMBHRRTR
i - REAERZHRERBER
ARERBN 2 HHRERR 2 EHRE
B BRRNE AL ERE R

DB REREEEENIINRRER
SEEERENBRAZFEE - PH
BRESEGRAEERBRANBR
=R BERARFRREEER
DR o LB RESIEREFE R
NESEEaREE LA ER/IH
RS MARR R E AR
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WERERN D BARR A BRI D B
RINMBAR s - BERBEHE
DEmAKEEETEN - BRIFDE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i e N

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or the Company
and other parties, where the contractual arrangement establishes
that the Group or the Company and one or more of the other
parties share joint control over economic activity of the entity.

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the associate’s or the jointly controlled entity’s net assets, unless
it is classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale. The consolidated income statement
includes the Group’s share of the post acquisition, post-tax
results of the associates and jointly controlled entities for the
year, including any impairment loss on goodwill relating to the
investment in associates and jointly controlled entities recognised
for the year (see note 2(e) and 2(m)).

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or the jointly controlled entity. For this purpose, the
Group's interest in the associate or the jointly controlled entity is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the
jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate
or jointly controlled entity, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M ERR Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE—

TE\FT-A=+—ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

(e)

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in associates and
jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(m)), unless it is classified as held for sale or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity over the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 2(m)). In respect of associates
or jointly controlled entities, the carrying amount of goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the interest in the associate or
jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of a business combination or an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, an associate or a jointly
controlled entity during the year, any attributable amount of
purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the gain or
loss on disposal.

Goodwill on acquisitions that occurred prior to 1 January 2001
was eliminated against goodwill reserves. Such goodwill is
released from goodwill reserves to retained earnings when all
or part of the business to which the goodwill is related to is
disposed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,

associates and jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Trading debt and equity securities are acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of trading, or are part of a portfolio of
identified debt and equity securities that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking.

Investments in debt and equity securities are designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when these
financial instruments are managed, evaluated and reported
internally on a fair value basis, or the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would

otherwise arise.

Debt and equity securities under this category are carried at fair
value and are not generally allowed to be reclassified into or out
of this category while held or issued. Changes in the fair value
are included in the income statement in the period in which they
arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference between the
net sale proceeds or the net payment and the carrying value is

included in the income statement.

Other investments in securities are classified as available-for-sale
securities and are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs. At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in the
investment revaluation reserve, except for impairment losses
(see note 2(m)) and, in the case of monetary items such as
debt securities, foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised directly in profit or loss. Where these investments are
interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss. When these investments
are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised directly in investment revaluation reserve is recognised

in profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell the investments or

they expire.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE—TZTN\F+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is charged
immediately to profit or loss, except where the derivatives qualify
for cash flow hedge accounting or hedge the net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(l)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair value.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(t)(iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(l)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to
other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 2(l).
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 & Z—

TE\FT-A=—ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0}

()

Other property and equipment
The following items of property and equipment are stated in
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(m)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land, where the fair value could be measured separately
from the fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of
the lease (see note 2(l)); and

—  other items of equipment comprising leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and equipment, and motor vehicles.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date of

purchase
—  Leasehold improvements 5 years
—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
—  Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE—

TE\FT-A=+—ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

Intangible assets — trading rights

Trading rights are stated at cost upon initial recognition and they

are deemed to have indefinite lives and are not amortised but are

tested for impairment annually.

Leased assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, except for property held under
operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property is classified as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held under a
finance lease (see note 2(h)).

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 & Z—

TE\FT-A=—ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any
such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

For unquoted equity securities and current receivables
that are carried at cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for current
receivables are reversed if in a subsequent period the
amount of the impairment loss decreases. Impairment
losses for equity securities that are carried at cost are
not reversed.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets).
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE—TZTN\F+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

()

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss
that had been recognised directly in the investment
revaluation reserve is removed from the reserve and
is recognised in profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

—  Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised directly in the
investment revaluation reserve.

— Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed

at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the

following assets may be impaired or, except in the case

of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:

Property and equipment;

Pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being
held under an operating lease;

Intangible assets;

investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures (except for those classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale); and

Goodwill

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific to
the assets. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE—

TE\FT-A=+—ALEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash- generating unit (or group of units) and
then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell,
or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(n) Accounts receivables and other receivables

Accounts receivables and other receivables are initially recognised

at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less

impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 2(m)),

except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to

related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of

discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables

are stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts (see note 2(m)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Accounts payables and other payables

Accounts payables and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE—TZTN\F+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(if)

(iif)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in an option premium reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior year is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the option
premium reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the option premium reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the option premium reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i e N

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movement in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly
in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purpose and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR T vt

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M SRR Mot

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iir)

(iv)

v)

Brokerage commission and service income

Brokerage commission and service income is recognised on a
trade date basis when the relevant transactions are executed
and related services are provided.

Sale of trading securities

Gains or losses on sale of trading securities are recognised
on a trade date basis when the relevant transactions are
executed.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when
the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M SRR Mot

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss, except those arising from foreign currency borrowings
used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised directly in equity.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in a separate component of equity. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at
the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognised in equity which relate to that
foreign operation is included in the calculation of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE—TZN\F+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Related parties

(x)

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(ii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in
which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent, or a close family member of
such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals; or

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i)
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that
individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of other
segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the purposes
of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1T—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(x) Segment reporting (continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include trading securities, trade receivables
and property and equipment. Segment revenue, expenses,
assets, and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such intra-group
balances and transactions are between Group entities within a
single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as

those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
year to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that

are expected to be used for more than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets,
interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances, corporate and

financing expenses.

(y) Segregated accounts

Segregated accounts maintained by the subsidiaries of the
Company to hold clients’ monies are not recognised as an asset

in the financial statements.

(z) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
and Interpretations that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. However, none of those developments are relevant to

the Group's operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see

note 41).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

3. OPERATING INCOME AND OTHER NET INCOME 3.

Operating income and other net income recognised during the year

are as follows:

LR SR EAFRA

AERNH R & F Wan BEADFWALIT

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST I
(Restated)
(&%)
Operating income =E 6
Brokerage commission and service income &40 e B RS U A 168,802 311,088
Interest income on financial assets not FERBE R AR AT EEBR
at fair value through profit or loss TRIEENSWA
— bank deposits —HRITIEN 48,305 71,514
— advances to customers —RBEEH 68,415 239,863
— others —EHfh 18,550 35,076
Dividend income from A% S U A
— listed investments — EWigE 33,877 62,454
— unlisted investments —FELEHIRE 4,269 9,200
Gross rental income from investment properties 38 1% & 2 & B U 1,136 1,649
343,354 730,844
Other net income HFE A
Net realised (loss)/gain on trading securities HERZ ZHB A ZBIRF
(18R), Wz
— equity securities — R EE A (339,036) 658,850
— debt securities — (GRS 151 442
— derivatives and others —PTETEREM 315,336 (341,766)
(23,549) 317,526
Net unrealised (loss)/gain on trading investments % 5% & 7 AEHF
(18R), Wiz
— equity securities — R EE A (77,050) 79,383
— derivatives —PTET A (275,443) (225,603)
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHREEES 2 F s
securities 1,590,357 610,149
Realised (loss)/gain on financial assets ¥57E AR B8 e DA R AR
designated at fair value through ATEENEREE
profit or loss B (EL) s (4,880) 215,632
Unrealised (loss)/gain on revaluation of BT ABABENRRATF
financial assets designated at fair value EENESRHEESEMHN
through profit or loss RER(BEKX), W (252,515) 192,428
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEEEZ W 2,220 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAFRE 25 228,865
Unrealised gain on notes payable FERT =R AT ERER 16,827 56,786
Exchange (loss)/gain, net BE 5% (BK),/Wias (966) 20,058
Net surplus on revaluation of investment B EE L FIEE
properties 6,001 2,400
Recovery of doubtful debts previously written off 4[Bl LA B 4E /& B % R BE 2,298 2,369
Others =i 14,246 2,038
997,571 1,502,031
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

OPERATING INCOME AND OTHER NET INCOME
(continued)

In prior years, the gross sale proceeds from disposal of trading
securities formed a component of ‘turnover’ while the corresponding
investment cost was classified as ‘cost of sales’. After consideration of
the preferred presentation under ‘Hong Kong Accounting Standards
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, the ‘net
gain or loss on disposal of trading securities’ is presented as other net
income in the income statement instead of the ‘gross sale proceeds
from disposal’. In line with this change, the net unrealised gain or
loss on trading investments is reclassified as other net income. These
changes in presentation do not have any impact on the Group’s
financial results. The 2007 comparative figures were restated
accordingly.

Turnover represents the aggregate gross sale proceeds from disposal of
trading securities, brokerage commission and service income, interest
income, dividend income and gross rental income from investment
properties.

ERWHEREMBFRBA (B

RURFE  HEXSEFMBZBLE
SRIIEIEXB N8y - MERZE
BRARIGIVET SHERA] - BREB(EES
FT#ERI395R : R T A —HEREG 8 )M
EEHITN  [HERXRHEFIBEIF R
BRI HELSR PITREBERRZ
HiFhA - MBERNR5REZRER
FRARKBRITEIIEEMFBA » 12
WEZEBFI T EANREZYHEREA
—ETLFEZ B BIMERELET -

EERBEHERIEFCHBHLESH K
M ERBEEA - FBRA - BEKA
RERBEEMEBSBWA -

STAFF COSTS ETEH
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Salaries and allowances T & R 201,216 283,841
Share-based payments LARE 1R (B 1,160 6,915
Staff welfare and insurance 8 TaEF MR 5,098 OWEE
Staff training and recruitment B T REEE 1,596 1,291
Pension costs — mandatory provident fund BRIRRA — BB K&
and defined contribution plans TE R FGETE 1,675 1,507
210,745 299,287
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 5 RKEBF
Profit from operations is stated after charging the following: KERNEHFR THIIER -
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented T REELEHERS
premises 8,644 7,716
Auditors’ remuneration IZE A & 5,642 3,146
Impairment loss on advance to customers BREFUREIRK 6,500 -
Impairment loss on debtors FEWBR RUR B K 5,076 836
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

6.

FINANCE COSTS 6. MKEHR
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Interest on bank loans RITERZF A 6,921 114,322

Interest to ultimate holding company REERAEBERZF B

(note 31(a)) (Ft7E31(a)) - 8,458
6,921 122,780

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS® 7.
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments:
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

As at 31 December 2008

EEREEMEcERAENME

(a) EEME:

RBEBFB(AFUEPDE BN+ — 1%
SR ERTMEMT

R-EBENF+-HA=1+—H

Salaries, Share-
allowances based  Retirement
and benefit payments scheme 2008
Directors’ inkind Discretionary (Note 1) contributions Total
fee Hé EER bonuses  MURAES BIGHE  —BENE
EEHe BEMFlE Mista (&1) 3 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive directors HiTEE
Tang Shuangning peE - 95 - - - 95
Zang Qiutao Bl - 105 - - - 105
Chen Shuang FRE - 1,385 4,300 - - 5,685
Xu Haoming (Note 2) R () - 35 = = = 35
Tang Chi Chun, Richard iy - 1,460 1,000 100 12 2,572
Non-executive director FHEE
Wang Weimin (Note 3) THERG) - 40 = = = 40
Independent non-executive directors BUIHITEE
Ng Ming Wah, Charles REFE 100 174 - - - 274
Seto Gin Chung, John AlfER 100 166 - - - 266
Lin Zhijun WEE 100 166 - - - 266
Tung Iring (Note 4) BEZ(H4) 55 90 = = = 145
355 3,716 5,300 100 12 9,483
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS' 7.
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments: (continued)
As at 31 December 2007
Salaries,
allowances
and benefit
Directors' in kind

fee H& 2HR
g5 EMAE
HK$'000  HK$'000

EENBEMEcTRAENME
(%)
(@) EZME: (8

R-B2LHF+-A=1—8H

Share-based Retirement

payments scheme 2007

Discretionary (Note 1) contributions Total
bonuses  SARRA(ENT {3
[pzan (&1) % CH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive directors HITEE
Tang Shuangning FgE - 59 - - - 59
Zang Qiutao ks - 62 - - - 62
Wang Mingquan THE - 1,108 - 156 - 1,264
Guo You El - 55 - 104 - 159
Chen Shuang R - 885 10,500 231 = 11,616
Zhou Liqun LBt - 539 - 156 - 695
He Ling R - 234 4,607 60 - 4,901
Xu Haoming BER - 100 - - - 100
Tang Chi Chun, Richard ik - 626 3,679 22 5 4,532
Independent non-executive directors BV TEE
Ng Ming Wah, Charles REE 100 153 - - - 253
Seto Gin Chung, John AR 100 152 = 104 - 356
Lin Zhijun WEE 100 147 — — — 247
Tung Iring Edies 100 137 - - - 237
400 4,257 18,786 1,033 5 24,481

Notes :

(1)  The above emoluments include the value of share options granted
to certain directors under the Company’s share option scheme as
estimated at the date of grant. Details of the share option scheme
are disclosed in note 28 and in the directors’ report.

(2)  Mr. Xu Haoming resigned as executive director of the Company on
19 June 2008.

(3) Mr. Wang Weimin appointed as non-executive director of the
Company on 19 June 2008.

(4) Madam Tung Iring resigned as independent non-executive director
of the Company on 18 July 2008.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

7.

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments

7. EERBEMECERAENME
()
(b) BEMESZEEZAR

2008 2007
—EENF T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Salaries and other emoluments 4 N H b SREN 5,177 5,004
Discretionary bonus BISIEAT 45,165 87,605
Share-based payments AR D (E A 225 2,075
Retirement scheme contributions RIREHEIHER 85 36
50,652 94,720
2008 2007
—EENF —TETAE
Number of directors FEAHK 1 1
Number of employees BB AR 4 4
5 5

Their emoluments were within the following bands: A ARIAT

Number of individuals

AH
2008 2007
—2ENF —FFLF
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 78#4,000,0017T % 75 #4,500,0007T 1 =
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 A 5,500,001 7T £ 7 #6,000,0007T 1 -
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 77,500,001 7% % %38,000,0007C 1 -
HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 711,000,001t 2 %% 11,500,0007T - 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 ##11,500,0017T 2 8% 12,000,0007T 1 2
HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000 #117,000,0017 /8% 17,500,0007C - 1
HK$21,000,001 to HK$21,500,000 721,000,001 2% #21,500,0007T 1 -
HK$43,000,001 to HK$43,500,000 #43,000,0017T 2 %#43,500,0007T - 1
5 5

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five highest
paid individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to join the Group or as compensation for loss of

office (2007: Nil).

RAEE  AEBEYE NS TR
SHeNABAL(BEREZERESR)
PARRBIE A S ERE BB R OB (B (=
TTLF E) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

INCOME TAX 8. MHIA
The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: BB FB R TIRANF 2 (BT R B Fi%
17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation for 16.5%(ZZFFLF : 17.5% ) {EFIBERE -
overseas subsidiaries is calculated at the appropriate current rates of EINET 2 Bisk - BIR B ARGE E b ET B R
taxation in the relevant countries. MAFKE B L EBE 2 BITH R
& o
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement WIFEBRRAZFHIBAEKAT ¢
represents:
2008 2007
—EENF —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Company and subsidiaries AR RHEA A
Current taxation ERTAER
- Hong Kong profits tax —EBFER 180,245 145,999
— Overseas taxation —FINEIR 22,277 50,021
— Under/(over) provision in respect of —AFEFBAEHIRE,
Hong Kong profits tax in prior years (E14) 2 2= B 460 (133)
Deferred taxation RIETIE
— Deferred taxation relating to —RER I R AR
the origination and reversal of EEAE R B
temporary differences 5,985 1,837
208,967 197,724
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

8. INCOME TAX (continued) 8.

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting profit at

BIR (%)
HMIRERERHAEN  REBFEHE

applicable tax rates:

AEZERNT

2008 2007
—sENF —TTLE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation M TR B & F 1,183,564 5,463,148
Calculated at the rates applicable to profits AR S ) AR R
in the tax jurisdictions concerned SRR E 2 Bi1E 232,943 948,807
Tax effect of income not subject to taxation EEE A N (182,371) (850,967)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PRI 2 X H
for taxation purpose 84,784 11,599
Tax effect of utilisation of previously FAARTR B ER 2 FiE
unrecognised losses (576) (2,962)
Tax effect of tax losses and other deductible REER 2 18 N E b AT F0 R
temporary differences not recognised TR RN E RN E
MR E 73,727 91,380
Under/(Over) provision in respect of prior years AR E /(BI1#) 7 EEE 460 (133)
Taxation charge g 208,967 197,724

In February 2008, the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region announced a decrease in the Profits Tax rate
from 17.5% to 16.5% applicable to the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong as from the year ended 31 December 2008. This decrease is
taken into account in the preparation of the Group’s 2008 accounts.
Accordingly, the provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2008 is
calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year and the opening balance of deferred tax has been re-
estimated accordingly.

R_ZTN\F_A - EBEFRTHRERF
EBEHEE—ETN\F+_A=+—H1t
FERERARAEBERENFEHE =X
H17.5% NAE16.5% - EREAEE —_F
ZNFEMREBREGTAZBE L TH o
EHit » —ZEENFEABFEHBEE N
FEAFTERTBANIETE16.5%(ZFF
+ 5 - 17.5%) 58 - MEERIB A F AT 4
BRINE VEEEFT G ET
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

9. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
Net profit for the year of approximately HK$404,439,000 (2007:
approximately HK$4,000,731,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

10. DIVIDENDS
(a) Dividends attributable to the year

9. RREGLEF

AEERARQBR EZFRFNN BB
404,439,000 T(Z Tt F : OB
4,000,731,0007T ) AR &) 2 B F5 Rz 1
BRIE o

10. K2
(a) BERFTFEZRE

2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
— Interim dividend declared and paid of —BEAMRE X TRFERE
HK$0.08 per share (2007 : Nil) FARE#0.087T
(Z2TLF : ) 127,190 -
— Final dividend proposed after the —RNEE BEERIRED
balance sheet date of NHAR S, - FAE0.127T
HK$0.12 (2007: HK$0.10) per share (Z=Z+F : B%o.107T) 190,979 158,841
318,169 158,841

The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.12 per share for
the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: HK$0.10 per share).
The proposed dividends are not reflected as dividend payable in

the financial statements.

EEeEERNEE—TT)\F+ A
=+ — AL FEIRE AP E TS
¥0. 120 (Z2Z L F « BRE%0.10
TT) ° B BT R B ISR
HIFE(SAR S, o

(b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, (b) RAFEMERTN BERLE—B
approved and paid during the year BEEZRE
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT BT
— Final dividend in respect of the —RAFEHAE R AT -
previous financial year, HERLE—MBFEEZ
approved and paid during the year, RERE B - FREEE0.107T
of HK$0.10 per share (2007 : Nil) “ETLFE ) 158,918 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

11. BREF

(a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on

the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company of
HK$1,014,832,000 (2007: HK$5,005,592,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,589,144,384 shares (2007: 1,579,314,372
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of shares

BREREF
BREARFZIZA R A REE
15 2 F) 78 %5 1,014,832,000 7T ( = &
=+ 4 @ % #5,005,592,000 70 ) &
RNERNBFETRG 2 M#EFEHRK
£01,589,144384 ] (=TT £ F :
1,579,314,3728%) * 5EMT :

K1n.2 1P

2008 2007
—EENF —EETLHF

Issued shares at 1 January
Effect of share options exercised

R—RA—HE#TRE
TERRECTE

1,584,704,212 1,569,003,212
4,440,172 10,311,160

1,589,144,384 1,579,314,372

Diluted earnings per share

(b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on

the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company of
HK$1,014,832,000 (2007: HK$5,005,592,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,593,740,950 shares (2007: 1,591,946,205

shares), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of shares (diluted)

SREFERF
BREFRFREANRRREEMN
B F) 5 %1,014,832,000( —TZ+
& : A ¥5,005,592,0007T ) K& & &
TEEREMEERETHSERD
2 AN#E 5 B% £101,593,740,950 4% (=
TE L ¢ 1,591,946,2050% ) @ 5HE
R

B1n.Z I FLRE (8 )

2008 2007
—2ENF —TTLE

Weighted average number of
shares at 31 December

Effect of deemed issue of shares
under the Company’s share option
scheme for nil consideration

K+ A=+t—BRhznE
live

RIBARE Z RBHEE] -
RREFINEH
31T 2 3K

1,589,144,384 1,579,314,372

4,596,566 12,631,833

1,593,740,950 1,591,946,205
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

12. FIXED ASSETS 12. EEEE
(a) Group (a) &£H
Interests in Buildings Furniture,
leasehold held for fixtures,
land held for own use equipment
own use under carried and motor
operating leases at cost Leasehold vehicles
NEREHE #EEA  Investment improvements HE
BEEAZ EEMN  Properties HE £B.RfE Total
HELt RAGIE  REWE NEEE RAE CE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
A%t BRTR A%t BRTR A%t BRTR

Cost or valuation: BASEE :
At 1 January 2007 RZEE+F—F—H 302,528 39,957 14,902 11,932 40,702 410,021
Additions NE - - - 8,374 7,503 15,877
Disposal HE - - - (788) (325) (1,113)
Surplus on revaluation EXtEl = = 758 = = 758
At 31 December 2007 W-_ZEt&+-A=+-H 302,528 39,957 15,660 19,518 47,880 425,543
Representing: AT
Cost AR 302,528 39,957 - 19,518 47,880 409,883
Professional valuation XA = = 15,660 = = 15,660
302,528 39,957 15,660 19,518 47,880 425,543
At 1 January 2008 W-ZZ\E—F—H 302,528 39,957 15,660 19,518 47,880 425,543
Additions NE - - - 10,323 5,397 15,720
Disposal e (4,407) (756) (100) (1,750) (2,692) (9,705)
Surplus on revaluation BihEE - - 6,001 - - 6,001
Reclassification EFNAl (14,841) (2,286) 13,139 - = (3,988)
At 31 December 2008 R-EE\E+-A=1—H 283,280 36,915 34,700 28,091 50,585 433,571
Representing: AT
Cost B 283,280 36,915 - 28,091 50,585 398,871
Professional valuation =ELE - - 34,700 - - 34,700
283,280 36,915 34,700 28,091 50,585 433,571
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12. BIEEE (#)
(a) Group (continued) (a) &EE(E)
Interests in Buildings Furniture,
leasehold held for fixtures,
land held for own use equipment
own use under carried and motor
operating leases at cost Leasehold vehicles
NEEHE #EEA  Investment improvements #E
BEERAZ REEIL  properties HE #B %6 Total
HELt RAGIE  REWE NEEE RAE CE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
A%t BRTR A%t ARTR A%t ARTR

Accumulated amortisation, ZREEH

depreciation and WERREE:

impairment:
At 1 January 2007 R=ZZ+5—F—H 99,128 3,476 = 10,053 34,758 147,415
Charge for the year REEHER 2,573 812 = 1,153 2,544 7,082
Written back on disposal ] ¢ - - - (143) (91) (234)
At 31 December 2007 R=EZ+&+-A=1-H 101,701 4283 = 11,063 37,211 154,263
At 1 January 2008 R=ZZ)\5—F—H 101,701 4,288 = 11,063 37,211 154,263
Charge for the year REEHER 2,476 798 - 3,365 3,737 10,376
Written back on disposal ] ¢ (177) (44) - (1,750) (2,650) (4,621)
Reclassification AR (3.473) (515) - - - (3,988)
At 31 December 2008 R-EE\&+-A=1-H 100,527 4,527 = 12,678 38,298 156,030
Net book value: BRER(E
At 31 December 2008 R-EE\&+-A=1—H 182,753 32,388 34,700 15,413 12,287 277,541
At 31 December 2007 W=_EZ+&+-A=1-H 200,827 35,669 15,660 8,455 10,669 271,280
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12. BIEEE®)

(b) Company b) AF
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Motor
HE KA vehicles Total
MR RERZE AE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT AT
Cost: BRA
At 1 January 2007 RZZTtF—HA—H 95 2,036 1,348 3,479
Additions NE - - 687 687
At 31 December 2007 R_EZ+F+-A=1—H 95 2,036 2,035 4,166
At 1 January 2008 RZZZEN\&—HF—H 95 2,036 2,035 4,166
Additions NE - - - -
At 31 December 2008 RZZEENE+=-B=1—H 95 2,036 2,035 4,166
Accumulated depreciation: EIREIE :
At 1 January 2007 R-ZE+F—F—H 49 1,938 562 2,549
Charge for the year AEERHE 19 39 395 453
At 31 December 2007 NZZEE+E+=-B=1—H 68 1,977 957 3,002
At 1 January 2008 R-ZZ)\&—HF—H 68 1,977 957 3,002
Charge for the year NEEE 19 38 407 464
At 31 December 2008 RZZENF+_A=1—H 87 2,015 1,364 3,466
Net book value: BRERE
At 31 December 2008 RZZENF+_A=1+—H 8 21 671 700
At 31 December 2007 RZETLFE+-A=1—H 27 59 1,078 1,164
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

12. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(c)

(d)

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and buildings and
investment properties situated at Hong Kong and Mainland
China were appraised by Messrs. S.H. Ng & Co. Limited, an
independent professional valuer in Hong Kong at 31 December
2008. These properties were appraised on an open market basis
and investment properties are carried in the balance sheet at
market value.

As at 31 December 2008, had the Group’s interests in
leasehold land and buildings been carried at fair value, their
carrying amount would have been HK$345,878,000 (2007:
HK$405,947,000).

Investment properties of HK$34,700,000 (2007: HK$15,560,000)
of the Group are rented out under operating leases, of which
HK$6,480,000 (2007: HK$6,800,000) are rented to the ultimate
holding company.

12. EEEE &)

(9]

AEERBERPEAEZHE L
rEERRENEHBENELER
FHERREERRBEMITIR _TTNEF
tTZA=1T—BZEEEM - ELY
EHURRATEER  REVERE
ERERATEAR -

R-FEZNE+=-_A=+—8 ' K
SEC HELTHEFEENEEER
NFEESER - BIEREAEENSE
345,878,000 ( =T+ : 498K
405,947,0007T) °

REBEELBH34,700,00070( ==
T F - #978%15,560,0007T ) 2 &%
BYHEERBECEROMEL - HPL
75%56,480,000L( Z T F : 498
#6,800,0007T ) B TR AKER A
ﬁ} o

The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: (d) EMEREFEITET :
Group REE
2008 2007
—EENF TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Held in Hong Kong RER
—on long lease — D REFRAEHS 211,490 218,563
—on medium-term lease — LA ERFR A3 A 29,250 24,275
240,740 242,838
Held outside Hong Kong REBUIIMEE
— on medium-term lease — AR ERFR A 9,101 9,318
9,101 9,318
249,841 252,156
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BALANCES

WITH SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

AR
(@) MBARRE

13. B2 RIRE KM B QR WER

2008 2007
—BENF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Investments, at cost ®E - EBKANME
Unlisted shares Ik FH S 1,610,870 1,609,081
Less: provision for impairment in value B WERERE (222,186) (4,900)
1,388,684 1,604,181
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries RRBIRN—ZEENF+_A=+—H
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the HEETIEERB AR :
group:
Percentage of
equity interest
Particulars held by
Place of of issued the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation Class of shares share capital KAFFME  Principal activities
WEARER Rl R EH BRTRARE EXERAAL  FEEER
Ally Point Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100%"  Investment holding
ELARAT Bib TR AE1007 RERR
ALAM (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary US$1,000 51%"  Fund management
BiE TR 1,000%7 LeER
ALAM Services and Consulting Cayman Islands Ordinary US$1,000 51%"  Fund management
Limited FAEHE i 1,000%7 E0ER
CEL Venture Capital (Shenzhen) The PRC, Limited Not applicable HK$100,000,000 100%  Provision of investment
Limited Liability Company ~ TNEH 781100,000,0007T advisory services and
FEAERRAIERE (RYI) HE - BREARF Investment
BRAR Rt EBRRERRE
CEL Management Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Provision of management
Limited &5 B BT services
ARERERREARAR RALETRIRT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BALANCES

WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

13. B2 RIRE K BB QR R

BRFR (&)
(a) HEBATRE(E)

Percentage of
equity interest
Particulars held by
Place of of issued the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation Class of shares share capital KAFFE  Principal activities
WEAREH gk BReER BRTRAEE  BNEEESM  TERE
CEL (Secretaries) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Provision of secretarial
KRER(E)BRAR A TEk BT Services
R ER
China Everbright Assets Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000,000 100%"  Provision of asset
Management Limited BE AR 7B 855,000,000 management services
PEXREEERARAA RECEEER R
China Everbright Bullion Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100%"  Provision of bullion
Investment Limited &5 IR I 0007T trading services
PEXALEREABRAT REBER M
China Everbright Capital Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 100%"  Provision of corporate
REFAREERAR A TEk 7#10,000,0007 finance and investment
advisory services
Rt RS R SRR
China Everbright Dragon Fund Cayman Islands Non-participating US$5 100%  Investment
Limited s shares 5% ®E
hEXAERESARAR E2ERER
Participating US$548.67
redeemable 548.67% 7T
preference shares
A2 EERERELR
China Everbright Finance Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000,000 100%'  Money lending
PERABBERAR &R LR 751100,000,0007C HEXH
China Everbright Financial Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100%"'  Investment holding
Holdings Limited B LiEk BE1007T REZR
HEE R ERERERAR Non-voting HK$200,000,000
deferred shares 71£200,000,0007T
ERFRETR
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BALANCES

WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

BRFR (&)
(@) HEBATRE(E)

13. B2 RIRE KM B QR WER

Percentage of
equity interest
Particulars held by
Place of of issued the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation Class of shares share capital KAFFME  Principal activities
WEARER Rl R EH BETRARE EXEREAL  FEEER
China Everbright Financial Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100%"  Investment
Investments Limited &b il 7£%1,000,0007C s
REXABBRERRAT
China Everbright Forex & Hong Kong Ordinary HK$35,000,000 100%"  Provision of futures brokerage
Futures (HK) Limited BE LER 78135,000,0007T and leveraged foreign
B RONE - 5 (F%) exchange trading services
BRRE RS RERS
MNER AR
China Everbright Network Hong Kong Ordinary HK$263 68.19%"'  Project investment
Payment Limited BB LBk 2637 HR&E
PEXABRSNARAR
China Everbright Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100%  Provision of investment
Management Limited &5 B 71,000,000 management services
MEXAERREERARAR RERAER R
China Everbright Wealth Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 100%  Provision of wealth
Management Limited B R 7H£500,0007T management services
REX R EERARAR REMEER
China Everbright Research Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,500,000 100%"  Investment research
FEKAEHARERAT &R EER 75#5,500,0007T RAHE
China Everbright Securities Hong Kong Ordinary HK$150,000,000 100%"  Provision of securities
(HK) Limited BB AR #1150,000,0007% brokerage services and
REKAES(BE)ERAT margin financing
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BALANCES

WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

BRFR (&)
(a) HEBATRE(E)

13. B2 RIRE K BB QR R

Percentage of
equity interest
Particulars held by
Place of of issued the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation Class of shares share capital KAFFE  Principal activities
WEAREH gk BReER BRTRAEE  BNEEESM  TERE
China Everbright Securities Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 100%'  Provision of nominee services
(Nominees) Limited Bk LER e REREARE
REXREF(REA)BRAR
China Special Opportunities Cayman Islands Limited Partnership Not applicable 50%  Investment
Fund, L.P. FHERS BRAa% &R &
Dial Eight Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100%"  Investment
EBAARES LAk B 3
Everbright-Efund Fund Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 50%  Fund management
Management Limited & LEK 71,000,0007% HeER
Everbright New Industries Capital  The PRC, Limited Not applicable RMB42,148,052 70%"  Project investment
Company Limited Liability Company 7N AE#42,148,0527T HERE
RARHEREZREBRAA e BREERA
Everbright San Shan Capital The PRC, Limited Not applicable RMB10,000,000 51%"  Asset management
Management Company Limited ~~ Liability Company 7N AK10,000,0007 RUEETERE
ARZLAERAERERAT  HE ARAEAR
Fortunecrest Investment Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS$1 100%"  Property investment
ARABRES TR %7 WERE
Hairich Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100%"  Property investment
BiE LRk 410,000 WERE
IHD (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.2 Malaysia Ordinary M$25,000 100%  Investment holding
YN LRk 25,0005 7T RERR
Janco Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Property investment
ERERARLA BB TR BT S
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BALANCES

WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

BRFR (&)
(a) HMEBATRE(E)

13. B2 RIRE KM B QR WER

Percentage of
equity interest
Particulars held by
Place of of issued the Company
Name of subsidiary incorporation Class of shares share capital AATFFE  Principal activities
WEARER R RAOER BRTRAEE  EABEASL  FERH
Solidpole Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Investment holding
ERERAT % LR BEIT RAER
SeaBright Asset Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 65%  Asset management
Limited B LRk 711,000,007 RUEEEEERYE
AREEEEERARAR
Seabright China Special British Virgin Islands Non-participating Uss5 78.90%"'  Investment
Opportunities (/) Limited HEARREE shares S BB
BAZER
Participating US$415
redeemable 415K T
preference shares
F2ERTENELR
Trycom Management Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100%  Investment holding
REERARMS Rk X7 REER
Wealthlink Pacific Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS$1 100%  Investment
REARARES LRk (B RE
Well Logic Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 100%"  Property investment
BRRERRAA B LRk AT MERE
Fm R A A AERAR The PRC, Limited Not applicable RMB1,000,000 100%'  Provision of consultancy
Liability Company ~ Ni@F AR%1,000,0007C services and investment
hEl - AREARF REFARK IR E
FImESHERES: The PRC, Limited Not applicable RMB25,462,500 100%'  Project investment
ARAR Liability Company ~ iEf ARH25,462,5007C LR
hEl - AREALF
mEREEERER AR The PRC, Limited Not applicable RMB20,000,000 61%'  Project investment
Liability Company ~ 7N@F AK#20,000,0007 BERE

HE - AREEAT

China Everbright Limited & B3¢ K3ZAZ AR A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND BALANCES

(a)

(b)

13. B2 RIRE K BB QR R

WITH SUBSIDIARIES (continued) BRAR ()

Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) MIBARREE)

Percentage of

equity interest

Particulars held by

Place of of issued the Company

Name of subsidiary incorporation Class of shares share capital KAFFME  Principal activities

WEARER Rl RGER ERTRAEE EXEREA  FEBEER

I REREEREBRERAR  ThePRC Not applicable RMB25,300,000 100%'  Project investment

HE il AR#25,300,0007C EARE
HES R mERRE The PRC Not applicable RMB100,000,000 100%'  Project investment
BRAA e NER AR100,000,0007 EARE

(1) Subsidiaries held indirectly. (1) ME#EEzHBAR -

(2) Subsidiaries not audited by KPMG. The aggregate net assets of (2) FKEFEAEZZMBRGT o FEL
subsidiaries not audited by KPMG is less than 0.1% of the Group's ESHMEZNNB AR FEEN
net assets. AREBEFEELN01% ©

Amounts due from subsidiaries (b) FEUWFIEBA TIFIE

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and FEUWHT B AR RIEHEIEKE - mAast

have no fixed terms of repayment. BREEEEERBE -

As at 31 December, 2008, the company has six non-interest RZZEENF+Z_A=+—H

bearing subordinated loans totalling HK$940,871,000 out of KRABHBNETTEEEER

which HK$99,121,000 is repayable in 2010, HK$591,750,000 B ¥ 940,871,000 L © E H B

is repayable in 2009, and HK$250,000,000 is repayable on 99,121,000 L R =T — T F X H -

demand (2007: five non-interest bearing subordinated loans 75 591,750,000 T A — E Z N, F &

totalling HK$827,123,000 out of which HK$577,123,000 is HA K2 7 # 250,000,000 7T B B 38 3R o

repayable in 2009, HK$150,000,000 is repayable in 2008 and (ZEZLF : AT BEREER

HK$100,000,000 is repayable on demand). It is the Company’s H B ¥ 827,123,000 7T © H B

intention not to demand repayment from those subsidiaries 577,123,000t = EZNF R E R

within one year other than subordinated loans that are governed #150,000,0007cH == \FEIH -

by specific agreements. 78 # 100,000,000 7T BN R & R ) © AR
ArEERERE@ENBARTE—F
AEZFIE - MEEERABIEME
ST REINAT ©

Amounts due to subsidiaries () EMHEBLRRIE

(0)

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

A B 2 ) KA 4 4 R SR A 5
5 REETEEOEH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS DUE 14. B N TR E R E B N TEhE

TO ASSOCIATES
(a) Investments in associates: (a) BHEATKRE:
Group Company
£H YNl
2008 2007 2008 2007
“BEN\F  TTEF  ZBEN\F  ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Investments, at cost BE - RAE
Unlisted shares in I TR
—Hong Kong —&R 40,458 40,458 40,390 40,390
— Overseas — g5 1,784,460 1,784,460 1,784,875 1,784,875
Share of post-acquisition reserves  FE{EUREEIE (% 3,912,213 3,494,381 - -
5,737,131 5,319,299 1,825,265 1,825,265
Less: A
Provision for impairment charged & &R ANR{E EME
against investment costs (165,548) (165,548) (41,073) (41,073)
Goodwill on acquisition UeEE g (682,792) (682,792) - -
Carrying value, net BRE(E  F5E 4,888,791 4,470,959 1,784,192 1,784,192
(b) As at 31 December 2008, particulars of the principal associate of (b) AEBR -_ZEZENFF+_A=+—
the Group are as follows: A ZZEEHEARERAT
Percentage of
Place of equity interest
incorporation/ held directly
Name of associate operation Principal activities RATEHERE
NI S i 2 FEXEK EXERADL
Everbright Securities Company The PRC Securities operations 39.31%
Limited (“Everbright Securities”) = BTG
K AREHRDBR A ]
(MRiE# )

For the year ended 31 December 2008, Everbright Securities has
recorded an after tax profit of RMB1.11 billion (according to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting standards) and the Group'’s share
of profit, under equity accounting method, amounted to HK$480
million.

China Everbright Limited & B3¢ K3ZAZ AR A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS DUE
TO ASSOCIATES (continued)

(b)

(o)

(d)

(continued)

The application for initial public offering and listing of Everbright
Securities was approved by the China Securities Regulatory
Commission Public Offering Review Committee on 30 June 2008.

Supplementary financial information of the principal
associate

Supplementary financial information in respect of the principal
associate extracted from its financial statements after necessary
adjustments to conform to the Group’s accounting policies and

14. BEQRARERENBE X RRE

(%)

(b) (&)
RAREFBERARBETRER LT
HREENR -_ZEZN\FRA=THETD
BHESEEEEZBSRTEREZE
BEB -

(0 EZEBREQATZHEUBESR

TBBERNT MR B ERERE
BB ER

"
NP Z R - AR
BUANAAKEZ @t RRRELES

prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong TR
Kong is as follows:
Everbright Securities
HKHEES
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
RMB’000 RMB'000
Consolidated income statement HeEBEEE ARET T AREETFIT
Turnover =L 4,826,115 10,189,791
Profit before taxation B %5 B EF 1,437,234 7,226,503
Current taxation AREEZHIA (244,715) (2,174,783)
Minority interests DER R e (85,452) (51,255)
Profit attributable to shareholders P& ER FE(5 2 A 1,107,067 5,000,465
Consolidated balance sheet GEEEAER
Total assets 488 B 12,527,054 13,775,866
Total liabilities MEE (1,408,535) (3,086,165)
11,118,519 10,689,701
Minority interests DER R e (155,890) (83,406)
Net assets HEE 10,962,629 10,606,295

Amounts due to associates
The amounts due to associates are unsecured, interest free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

(d) ENBEQTRE
ENBERRFEARERT 28
MEEEEERS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1T—HIFE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

15. RHHEERS

Group Company
] AF]
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE 2T F —EENE —RELF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT BB BT
Listed equity securities at fair value: TTREZR AR ATE
Listed in Hong Kong REB LM 87,539 2,494,642 - =
Listed in Mainland China AR E A _ETH 931,683 2,715,673 - -
Unlisted equity securities IEFHREES 3,062,958 3,835,513 2,687,314 3,805,890
4,082,180 9,045,828 2,687,314 3,805,890
Group Company
55 AF]
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BEN\F  ETTEF  ZBEN\F  ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T BB
Fair value of individually impaired AR ER B SRR
available-for-sale equity securities: EHENTE :
Listed in Hong Kong REB LM 77,855 16,905 - -
Unlisted equity securities FEETREES 231,725 - 75,959 =
309,580 16,905 75,959 -
As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s and the Company’s available- N_BEENF+_A=+—"H £REEK

for-sale equity securities were individually determined to be impaired
on the basis of a material decline in their fair value below cost and
adverse changes in the market in which these investees operated
which indicated that the cost of the Group’s investment in them
may not be recovered. Impairment losses on these investments were
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in

note 2(m)(i).

Realised gains on disposal of certain available-for-sale securities are
subject to the payment of an incentive project bonus to an investment

team (see note 32(b)).

114 China Everbright Limited /1Byt K¥EpE AR A 7]
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

15.

16.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES (continued)
The Group held the following principal available-for-sale security as at
31 December 2008:

15. BEHEER S (B®)
RZBENF+-_A=+—08  K"&EFEEF
BUTEBHHEHEESES

Effective equity
interest held

Place of by the Group
Company name incorporation Principal activities rEBFELERHE
NEEH o fH 3t B FEXK EXEZEDL
China Everbright Bank Company Limited The PRC Banking operations 6.23%

("Everbright Bank” (i) a3
B RIRITARAD BRR A R ([ RERIT )

(i) At 31 December 2008, the carrying value of interests in
Everbright Bank exceeded 10% of total assets of the Group.

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

RITE

) MZBEENF+=-_A=+—H8" K&
EXARBITHNEAESRAEEEE
ER10% °

16. EEABRBREBEURRAFEEN
THEE

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
At fair value: ~FE -

Hong Kong listed equity securities BB FTRERE S 46,111 277,473
Overseas unlisted equity securities EINEETREES 144,120 373,303

Overseas unlisted convertible HEHNE_ET AT B SR AR
preference shares 6,272 14,658
196,503 665,434

Realised gains on disposal of certain financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss are subject to the payment of an incentive
project bonus to an investment team (see note 32(b)).

BOEER/BBBEARRAFEENE
REEHERMNER KRS  SREFER
BReH TIREBR (2/M5E32(0)) °
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSSR P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1T—HIFE

17. B EE

Goodwill Trading rights Total
5k R &%t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost: RS BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2007 R-EBEZ+F—HF—H 102,300 1,250 103,550
Release upon disposal of an associate &&= A 5] # 0] (88,350) - (88,350)
At 31 December 2007 —EELF+-_A=1+—H 13,950 1,250 15,200
At 1 January 2008 RZEENFE—H—AR 13,950 1,250 15,200
Addition 30 4,941 - 4,941
At 31 December 2008 T N\F+ZA=1+—AH 18,891 1,250 20,141
Accumulated amortisation Rt BEREEERX
and impairment loss:
At 1 January 2007 R-_EBEZ+F—HF—H 102,300 - 102,300
Release upon disposal of an associate &&= A B # 0] (88,350) - (88,350)
At 31 December 2007 —EEL+F+-_A=1+—H 13,950 - 13,950
At 1 January 2008 RZZEENE—A—AK
and 31 December 2008 —EENF+-_A=1+—H 13,950 - 13,950
Net book value: BREFE ©
At 31 December 2008 —EENF+-_A=1+—H 4,941 1,250 6,191
At 31 December 2007 TR+ -A=1+—H = 1,250 1,250

China Everbright Limited A B3¢ KIERA PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

18. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 18. BF B

2008 2007
—EEN\F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Term loans to customers EHIRBEER 344,202 241,898
Amounts due from margin clients FREPER 326,549 1,364,417
670,751 1,606,315
Less: Impairment loss provision W REEREE (9,823) (5,857)
660,928 1,600,458
Term loans are secured either (a) by unlisted bonds issued by reputable BHRPEFA()E R EEFT AR iR 2
financial institutions held as collateral or (b) by leasehold land in 1723 EmfES k(b)) B AT E e
Mainland China. Amounts due from margin clients are secured by R - FREPHRAEZEER ETESE

listed securities pledged by margin clients held as collateral. An ageing TR - BREC AT -

analysis is as follows:

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Repayable on demand BBFE IR 414,196 1,542,150
Over 3 months to 1 year “EAREE—F 29,675 64,165
1 to 5 years —ZD s 226,880 -
670,751 1,606,315
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

19. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 19. BYIR - RERFANR
Group Company
3L AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EBN\F —TTLE  —BEN\F CITLH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT BET T BETT

Accounts receivable, net FEWAR - RE 371,287 fl, 112,944 - -
Deposits, prepayments and other e - BNHREHEM

receivables FEUGBE X 57,000 233,375 4,940 4,793
Dividend receivable from a subsidiary ~ F—HKTEBA B4 T KO REL R 2 - = 1,000,000 2,650,000

428,287 1,346,319 1,004,940 2,654,793

Details of the ageing analysis on accounts receivables are as follows: FEBE 2R BRI D AT AN R -
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within 1 month —EAUT 369,211 1,104,229
Within 1 to 2 months —Z=—{EA 540 5,770
Within 2 to 3 months —E=={8A8 264 1,292
Within 3 to 6 months =Z=~EA 749 899
Over 6 months 7B B LA E 5,599 1,590
376,363 1,113,780
Less: Impairment loss provision B R BB EE (5,076) (836)
371,287 1,112,944
Accounts receivable mainly comprise amounts due from brokerage FEWERTEARNEE  RULEBKEE -
clients, investment banking clients, brokers and clearing houses. These RERITEP  BEBFREEMRER
receivables, except for investment banking receivables which are due MIEERTEWE A HESRE R
on issuance of invoice, are normally due two days after trade day. The G o B A pE UG EBE — AR TE X B 14 R B ER
extension of credit requires management’s approval on a case-by-case EEE R EREEE R E o
basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

20. TRADING SECURITIES 20. XG5 F"H
2008 2007
—ETN\F —EELHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current assets REEE BT T BT
At fair value: ~NFE
Equity securities: REZEF
— listed in Hong Kong —&BEm 63,084 813,705
— listed overseas — /AN T - 83,275
63,084 896,980
Debt securities: BEEES
— unlisted —JELEm 33,700 372
33,700 372
Derivatives: PTET A :
— equity-linked and options — HR AR ZE A - 160,396
- 160,396
96,784 1,057,748
Current liabilities REEE
At fair value: NEE
Equity securities: RERE R
— listed in Hong Kong — &8 LM (189,739) (47,002)
Derivatives: PTHETR :
— listed in Hong Kong —&E LM (1,780) =
— equity — linked note — HR AR SR A - (434,098)
— others —HAth (229,533) (61,107)
(421,052) (542,207)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21. BERBEEEEY

Group Company
£8 NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —TTtF CZBENF —TTtHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT BETT BT T
Cash on hand, savings and current Re  RERTRER
accounts 1,152,543 575,817 164 228
Fixed deposits with banks SRITERER 3,266,128 1,251,106 - =
4,418,671 1,826,923 164 228
Less: Deposits pledged A BRI 2 TE R (571,915) (379,970) - =
3,846,756 1,446,953 164 228

22.

CREDITORS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUED 22. B[R - CHIRE RTEIRER

CHARGES
Group Company
&5 NG
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENE —EELFE CZEENE —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT BT T BT
Accounts payable iAREE N 195,066 605,621 - -
Other creditors, deposits received Hi R - EdE S
and accrued charges RIERE A 79,995 209,486 1,918 2,800
275,061 815,107 1,918 2,800

Accounts payable are all due within one month and comprise
principally amounts due to brokerage clients, brokers and clearing

houses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

23.

24,

NOTES PAYABLE

23. ENZE#E

2008 2007

—EEN\F T

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT

Unlisted notes issued by the Group, NEBFREIT 2 IE LTS
at fair value: FE - AFE:

Face value ZHE 179,732 97,541
Less: unrealised gain B RE BRI ES (103,773) (54,754)
75,959 42,787

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has issued two notes with a face
value totalling RMB144,950,000 to two independent third parties.
The carrying amount of the notes as at 31 December 2008 was
HK$75,959,000 (2007: One Note at HK$42,787,000). Under the terms
of the notes, the Group will pay the subscriber all the realised proceeds

and investment income received from available-for-sale investments

held by the Company throughout the life of the notes. Both notes will

mature in 2011.

INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

24,

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:

R-FENE+-A=f—8 A%
HAETTMREARBA KARK

144,950,0007C 2 Z & F i1 55

o A —

VA= °

ZEZER_EE/N\F+=-_A=1+—HH
BRMEI{E A5 75,959,0007T ( — T T4 :
—REE AB42,787,0007T) ° RIEZE
EBRZER  AEEEERARFEEHE
FIEHEEEFEST R CEBERBRARE
BRHIZNTEBRRESE - ZZZBER

—T——FRNIH -

REERBRNOBALES

(a) REEEBERANKRERNEHR

2008 2007

—EENE —ETLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T ST I

Provision for Hong Kong Tax for the year INE S IS5 161,260 145,999
Provision for PRC Tax for the year 7N AR B P 1 R 15 B 22,277 50,021
Provisional profit tax paid B EFEH (50,696) (14,496)
132,841 181,524

Balance of profit tax provision relating AR FEEEBNESHERE

to prior years 400,276 307,531
533,117 489,055
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

24. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued) 24. REESBERNBEEBE)
(b) Deferred taxation (b) EZEFIE
The movements on the deferred tax assets /(liabilities) are as EEFRIEEE (A ZEgHunT -
follows:
Fair value Withholding
adjustment for Accelerated tax tax on
available-for-sale securities depreciation associate's profit
RtHEERS Tax losses MEAE BENR Total
AVEER fREX B8 RHAEH At

008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
SRR\ ZETLE CEIRNE IR CERNF CTRLF CRRNF CTRLE CRRNRE CERLA
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000 ~ HKS000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BT EETn  AWTn  ERTT  ARTn  RBMTr BT BETn  ERTR ERTR

At 1 January »—-A—-H (898,970)  (169,812) - - (51) (68) - - (899,021)  (169,380)
Credited(charged) NrRBER

to profit or loss L/ (51) 34,139 (2683)  (18,886) 829 18 17 (21,256) - (5,985) (1,837)
Credited(charged) REER 2 2E/

10 reserve (3H8) 654,708 (727304) - - - - - - 654708  (727304)
Set off of tax TS (18,984) 829 18,984 (829) - - - - - =
At 31 December ®M=A=+-H (229,107)  (898970) 98 - (33) (51)  (21,256) - (250,298) (899,021)
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(r), the BEMF2(N 2 B5THER - AEEXRE
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets, in respect of tax R IERT B EE 12,6918 (Z
losses of approximately HK$ 1,269 million (2007: HK$992 million), TTLF - LB 2B ERIEL
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the MEEE RESE@EERT—ER
tax losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant entity. BEAEARKRERM BT AETR B IE 2

M o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. |R#&
2008 2007
—EEN\F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT
Authorised: SEERRA -

Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each BiEE1.007T 2 EBEik D 2,000,000 2,000,000

Issued and fully paid: BEETREHERA :
At 1 January FAIRER 1,584,704 1,569,003
Exercise of share options 1T E 6,308 15,701
At 31 December FREREE 1,591,012 1,584,704

Shareholders are entitled to receive dividends as declared and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(a) Capital Management

The Group’s primary objectives in capital management are
maximising shareholder return, matching of business funding
needs and maintaining the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. Management regularly, or as changes in circumstances
warrant, reviews and manages its capital structure so as to
maintain a proper balance amongst shareholder returns,
leveraging and funding requirement.

BERERKREE RS RRAR R Z B
REBFEEEHR R ZREE - FIABRD
BARRBZRBEEDBREZOFHE

(a) EXEE
AEBEAEENERZRE  EHK
REHEAE  REEBESFTE
ARGRASENFEER - BEE
EHSRARERZ(CRTRERRLE
ARG - AERRRE®R  BERRE
&R RREE T -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(a) Capital Management (continued)

25. BAR (%)
(a) EXEE(H)

Net-debt is defined as liabilities generated from operations
(includes creditors, other payables and trading securities
liabilities), note payable, interest bearing loans and unaccrued
proposed dividends, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital represents total equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.
The net-debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December 2008 and

2007 was as follows:

FEBHNEEAKEEENAE(RE
FERTERR - EEMNFERR HESH
BE) BNZEE EEFEHNER
RARFHRMEZKE @ BERE KRR
SEEBY  c KABZEAAERBRE
BATIRNEZRE - R=ZZTZTNF
+—A=t+—HBER-_ZET+EWEE
TEERLLEMNT ¢

2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MosE BT T TSI
Current liabilities HREBaE
Creditors, deposits received and FERERR - BYIRS &
accrued charges TBIRE 22 275,061 815,107
Trading securities RS HEH 20 421,052 542,207
696,113 1,357,314
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Notes payable RS 23 75,959 42,787
Total debt EEEE 772,072 1,400,101
Add: Proposed dividends o EERE 190,979 158,841
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W HEeNEEEEY (3,846,756) (1,446,953)
Net (assets)/debt H(EE) &% (2,883,705) 111,989
Total equity RS 13,499,888 17,497,584
Less: Proposed dividends T EEEAR A (190,979) (158,841)
Adjusted capital RARNER 13,308,909 17,338,743
Net-debt-to-adjusted BEELARERLR
capital ratio (21.7%) 0.6%

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s liquidity has strengthened
significantly without a net debt position. This is mainly
attributable to the reduction in advances to customers, the
cutting down of exposures to trading securities investments plus
the divestment of certain available-for-sale securities and financial
assets designated as fair value through profit or loss. The Group
has planned, and is also seeking, investment opportunities to
utilise the surplus capital for to enhance shareholder returns.

China Everbright Limited & Bl 3¢ K3ZAZ AR A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(a) Capital Management (continued)
The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements. Certain subsidiaries of the Company are subject
to regulatory imposed capital and liquid capital requirements
(see also note 34(b)), these subsidiaries have complied with
those requirements at all time during both the current and prior
financial years.

25. A (&)

(a) EAXTE(HE)
ARFBEABFINANEREE o K
AREFHBATEAETEELRTE
THERRRBERRTEGELRM T
34(b)) - ZEMBA TN RENRESE
N—EFAEBRE

26. RESERVES 26. f# &
The Company KAF
Retained
Option  Investment Capital profits/
premium  revaluation redemption (Accumulated
Share reserve reserve Capital reserve losses)
premium 2RE REER reserve EAEE RELF/ Total
BAxEE nERE it BAGE Rt (RHER) fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BB BB BETT BETT BETT
Asat 1 January 2007 “ERLE-R-ARE 5,641,148 28,702 2,032 - 2984 (3792877) 1,881,989
Surplus on revaluation ] = - 2133740 = = - 2133740
Share options forfeited BUHR L 8 RNk - (1,004) - - = 1,004 =
Shares issed under share EEREpAtl ¢
option scheme 51,219 (20,162) - - - - 31,057
Equity settled share-based transactions WA % fF 2 kA% 5 - 6,915 - - - - 6,915
Implied interest on non-interest bearing ~ fEl B AR R &
subordinated loans to a subsidiary BERZBERE - - - (29,5%) - - (29,5%)
Profit for the year KERF| - - - - - 4,000,731 4,000,731
As at 31 December 2007 and RZEELE
1 January 2008 TZA=+-RR
“2E\§¥-A-H 5,692,367 14,451 2,135,772 (29,5%) 2,984 208,858 8,024,836
Deficit on revaluation EhHE - - (1,096,994) - - - (1,09,994)
Share options forfeited BRI E TARE = (50) - - - 50 _
Shares issued under share EEREpAnl ¢
option scheme 25,863 (9,516) - - - - 16,347
Equity settled share-based transactions AR 244 2 IRAZ: 5 - 1,160 - - - - 1,160
Implied interest on non-interest bearing ~ FEU B AT R &
subordinated loans to subsidiaries BETZBENE - - - (1,241) - - (1,241)
Dividends paid BRRE = = = = - (286108)  (286,108)
Profit for the year RERT = = - - - 404,439 404,439
As at 31 December 2008 WZEE\F+ZA=T-H 5718230 6,045 1,038,778 (30,837) 2,984 327,239 7,062,439

The movement in the Group's reserves have been disclosed in the REBZREZHENGERREFHRI
consolidated statement of change s in equity. N
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

27. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

0}

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium and the capital redemption
reserve is governed by Sections 48B and 49H respectively of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Option premium reserve

The option premium reserve represents the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share based payments in note

2(q)(i).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for sale securities held at
the balance sheet date and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in note 2(f).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations as well as the effective portion of any foreign
exchange differences arising from hedges of the net investment in
these foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 2(u).

Goodwill reserve

The goodwill reserve comprises goodwill on acquisitions that
occurred prior to 1 January 2001. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2(e).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises specific allocation of amount
transferred from retained earnings due to regulatory
requirements. It also includes the share of statutory reserve of
associates.

China Everbright Limited /1 B3¢ KRB PR A A

27. REZHEEAR

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BAREREREE HE
BRAEENRERNBEFEEZER T
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RRERERE
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AT ERSR (MERE2(a)(i)) FER AR M T (8

B2 RN E B E58E M RTT
ERBEADFE -
RESEMREE

BREEGEREEEBHREEESFNE
ERBERZAVEZRNFEY - H
EAREEEERRPHE2)EE

B Rk
ERREEREMAEELRREFINE
BeHMBRERZER Z8REE T
ZBINETSFIRE 2 B ME H =58
n - BRARE 2 STERIEE ISP
FF2(u) °

AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 24

May 2002 whereby the Directors of the Company are authorised, at

their discretion, to grant to employees of the Group, including directors

of any company in the Group, to take up options and subscribe for

the shares of the Company. Upon the first anniversary, 25% of the

options will vest and the rest will vest in three equal installments on

each subsequent semi-anniversary. Each option gives the holder the

right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

0}

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the

year are as follows, and all options are settled by physical delivery

of shares:

28. RELERS

ARABREEEN_FTT_FHA_1t0O
By T —EARBEFERAARE 2 EE
BREASEETEMNARZES  HHR
BHENRBARAZIRE - R RBES
HI25% N —BFERAR - FRrRK
B FO=HREREFFESER B
—REEETREARBARB Z —RE
A
() RNERFERHRBBEZ GRS
T o FTBERBAEARZEE DR
AR

No. of options

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price, HK$ granted
R B8 AR 1TEH TEE - B AREHE
03/09/04 04/09/04-03/03/07 04/09/05-03/03/08 3.225 1,250,000
03/05/05 04/05/05-03/11/07 04/05/06-03/05/10 2.850 15,900,000
05/05/05 06/05/05-05/11/07 06/05/06-05/05/10 3.000 1,520,000
04/07/05 05/07/05-04/01/08 05/07/06-04/07/10 3.135 820,000
27/09/05 28/09/05-27/03/08 28/09/06-27/09/10 3.100 800,000
10/04/06 11/04/06-10/10/08 11/04/07-10/04/11 4.800 6,200,000

26,490,000
Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the HREBENRAREENATEER:, - ZRRES

option is vested.

SR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 28. MELZER S (&)

(continued)

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (i)

options are as follows:

RAHE 2 8B R ENEFOFHE 21T
EEMT :

2008 2007

—E2ENF T
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise  Number of exercise
share price share price
options nEFEY options hnREE
RREHE TEE RREZE R
HK$ HKS$
BIT PETT
Outstanding at 1 January R—HA—B&% 10,491,500 3.667 27,152,500 3.241
Exercise during the year RERTTHE (6,307,500) 3.593 (15,701,000) 2.980
Lapsed during the year RER LR (50,000) 4.800 (960,000) 2.850
Outstanding at 31 December Rt+t—-—A=+—H&%E 4,134,000 3.765 10,491,500 3.667
Exercisable at 31 December MT+=—A=+—Hua17# 4,134,000 3.765 6,986,500 3.196

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$16.079 (2007:
HK$15.983).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2008 had exercise
prices ranging from HK$2.850 to HK$4.800 (2007: HK$2.850 to
HK$4.800) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of
1.801 years (2007: 2.463 years).

China Everbright Limited /1 B3¢ KRB PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(iii) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted are measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services
received is measured based on a binominal option pricing =&
model. Contractual life of the option and expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the model. The expected volatility
is based on the historical volatility. Expected dividends are based
on historical dividends as well as expectation on future period
performance. Changes in subjective input assumptions could

materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services rendered. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants. The
Company has not granted any share option in 2007 and 2008.

29. MATURITY PROFILE
Maturity profile as at 31 December 2008

28. REZERS (&)
(i) BREZATERER
IR R R R T M R A 0 1 T (B R
BT RRENATENE - BERH
H A T ER CESHETEER)
- RREHANERRIET 212
PITEAERAZER - HHRIEIE
BESRIEE - RS IR EE
PRERFERRRZLBERRETE -
THRABRRNBHITHEEATERD
AR -

REENET AT A BB R R
MR AS HRE T BB R
ATFE o TIH I RIS T R L
B ARAR =TT LER-FT
J\F PSR B -

29. MR
R=BF/\F+=A=1+—BHRIH

1 year or 5 years or
3 months less but over less but over
Repayable or less 3 months 1 year After
on demand &R AL 1E5E 5 years Total
BRHER FUT 25 B5F SEULE HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT BETT BETT BRI BETR
Assets 8E
— Advances to customers —ZEHES 404,373 - 29,675 226,880 - 660,928
- Debt securities —EEES - - - - 33,700 33,700
— Fixed deposits —EHER - 3,266,128 - - - 3,266,128
404,373 3,266,128 29,675 226,880 33,700 3,960,756
Liabilities =4
— Notes payable ~EREE - - - (75,959) - (75.959)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

29. MATURITY PROFILE (continued)

Maturity profile as at 31 December 2007

29.

HARR 2347 ()

R-ZZEZLF+_A=+T—BHRST

1 year or 5 years or
3months less but over  less but over
Repayable or less 3 months 1 year After
on demand @A 3EALE 1€ E 5 years Total
BIEFE R FLAT EE F5F S E ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Assets EE
— Advances to customers —-EZEEZR 1,536,293 - 64,165 = = 1,600,458
~ Debt securities —EEEA 372 - - - - 372
— Fixed deposits —EHER - 1,251,106 - - - 1,251,106
1,536,665 1,251,106 64,165 - - 2,851,936
Liabilities af
~ Notes payable ~ERE - - - (42,787) - (42,787)
30. SEGREGATED ACCOUNTS NOT REFLECTED ON 30. "RMREEEBRZEERS
BALANCE SHEET
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST IT
Bank balances — segregated accounts RITHER —EFEERP 716,164 1,210,948
Receivable from clearing house FEW 4 B BT R BB P 5R0E
and futures brokers 253,113 21,190
Amounts held on behalf of clients REFF A (969,277) (1,232,138)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

The following transactions were entered into with related parties

31. FBEALRS

@ ARERFAREEMEALZIZN

during the year: N
2008 2007
—EEN\F T LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Management of funds of China Everbright &2/ Y AKEEAR A7)

Holdings Company Limited ([HREEDHES

(“CE Holdings"”) by way of investing into & &R ANEBE K AIFLA

China Everbright Dragon Fund Limited, B B RERER()

a private fund established by the Group (i) - 158,042
Incentive fee income received from [E A SR B B 2 2EED & (i)

CE Holdings (i) 7.766 19,291
Management fee shared by CE Holdings (i) Y AEBEDEZ EEER() 1,693 4,662
Performance fee shared by CE Holdings (i) ¢ R&EBDEZ EZE() - 25,155
Rental income received from: HBHA -

— CE Holdings (i) — SR ER (i) 180 180

— Everbright Bank (iii) — JERERTT (i) 84 84
Securities brokerage commission UWER 27 &4

received from:

— a subsidiary of CE Holdings —XAREEHEZ
—ZKHBAF] 72 209
Interest expenses on loans paid to MAEAEELNERZ

CE Holdings FEZH - 8,458
Rental expense paid to wholly-owned MAAREBFEZEE

subsidiaries of CE Holdings (iv) MiE A Al X 2 (iv) 4,926 6,170
Consultancy fee expenses: B

— paid to an associate — M E AR 300 300
Remuneration for key management SEEEAEMS

personnel (including the Company’s (BIEANRESE)

directors) which is included in ERSEIETEA]:

“staff cost”:

— short-term employee benefits — R HE S F% 19,303 61,787
— retirement scheme contributions —RIRETEIfR 87 83
— Share-based payments — AR (B 288 2,628
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(i)

(ii)

In May 2005, China Everbright Assets Management Limited
(“CEAM"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has entered into an investment management agreement
with CE Holdings for the management of a HK$100 million
portfolio for a term of 1 year. On 28 June 2006, CEAM
entered into a new investment management agreement
with CE Holdings for the management of a HK$300 million
and US$10 million portfolio for terms ranging from 1 to
3 years. Under the terms of the investment management
agreements, the Group is entitled to an incentive fee of
30% from the part of the portfolios’ return in excess of
certain agreed percentages. The incentive fee earned directly
from CE Holdings is disclosed above.

Some portions of the portfolios have been placed with
China Everbright Dragon Fund Limited (“Dragon Fund”). As
CEAM s also the investment manager to Dragon Fund, it
earned management fee and performance fee from Dragon
Fund. The amounts of management fee and performance
fee earned from Dragon Fund have been eliminated in
the preparation of consolidated financial statements but
the relevant amounts attributable to the CE Holdings’
investment portions are disclosed above.

During the year, CE Holdings has fully redeemed the funds
invested in the Dragon Fund.

On 20 December 2005, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with the CE Holdings in relation to the leasing of
residential premises to the ultimate holding company for the
period from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2007. In 2008,
the tenancy was continued at the same rent and the rental
income earned by the Group amounted to HK$180,000 for
the year.

China Everbright Limited /1 B3¢ KRB PR A A

31. EBEALIRZ (&)

(a)

(&)
(i)

(ii)

RZBEZERFAHA  ARRZ—
REEWNBARIFRENREES
BERAG([AREEERE])H
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NAZTHN\B - AREEERHE
KRB EE] T —IEAH—
E-FREEERE  AEE
S EE3{E TR 1,0008 £ T 2 1%
BHE - REBZE MR IGR
MEBIREHEERRRNIBEL
Aotk - BIARSETERGHET
EHAH30% - EEMEAEBER
B2 EZEEEHBER X -

REMATABO ERENTE
RAREBRESARLA([FEEE
E]) HRNARBEEEEINSRE
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PIER 2 BB RERBECD IR
R BB HRER TR - ERE
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SRAKER EX -

AAREEERFAZHEONE
BESAZKE -

RZBEZERF+-A=+H " ' &
SEMY KEEHE —HEL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)
(i)

(b)

(continued)

On 28 August 2005, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with Everbright Bank in relation to the leasing of
office premises to Everbright Bank for the period from 28
August 2005 to 27 August 2006 with an option to renew
for another term of one year. Pursuant to the exercise of
such option, the lease was renewed for one year from 28
August 2006 to 27 August 2007. The rental agreement is
continued with the same rental amount. The rental income
earned by the Group amounted to HK$84,000 for the year.
Mr Tang Shuangning is Chairman to the Group as well as
Everbright Bank’s Board of Directors.

On 5 February 2007, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the CE
Holdings entered into a tenancy agreement with the Group
in relation to the leasing of office premises to the Group for
the period from 31 December 2006 to 30 December 2008.
The rent expense amounted to HK$4,926,000 for the year.

Included in the balance sheets are the following balances with

31. BREAEALRS (@)

(a)

(b)

(iii)

(iv)

(/&)

RZZZRFNAZ+NAAB ' &K
SEENARRITRT ALY -
AEEREHE—ERAME
HE R —ZETRF/N\A=-_+/\H
EZTERFNAZFERILE
HRIRITH R ZA L ER &
B—F - mHARRITEITEAT M
R - ZBHE FEH—F |
“EERFENAZFTNBEE=ZE
TLFNAZ+TEHLE - AL
RUFEHARBESELN  AEER
REE 7 e WA BEEES4,000
T BEELERBAEEEKXK
RITEFGZER °

R-ZZTZELF_FAFHHA - KKE
Erz2EWBAREANEERRR]
—IBML - AEEREREEA
—IEMAYE  HHBHZZFEX
F+_A=+—HZE-_ZTZTNF
+ZA=+H xFEZHEX
i &7 #4,926,0007T °

REERBRANBBEALERR

related parties: BFE
Group Company
%5 NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EBN\E —TTLF CZEBN\E "TTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT
Amount due from an associate NI O]
(included in debtors, deposit (BEREWER
and prepayment) (i) B REFAZKA) 102,393 289,319 - -
Amount due to ultimate PRI B AR IR A R 3R 08
holding company (63) - -

(i)

Amount due from an associate arose in the ordinary course
of securities brokerage business, and is unsecured, interest
bearing and repayable upon demand.

FER B ‘& N R BRI E AL B B
FREBPZERESRRD &K
FREER - 58 WRERE

faE -

Al
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

32. AAREE

Corporate guarantee (a) 2AFER
2008 2007
—BBN\E —ETAHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Guarantee given to financial institutions BB ARRRITEE
in respect of banking facilities & BB R
granted to subsidiaries 170,000 170,000
As at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007, the Group's RZBEENF+_A=+—HEK=F
subsidiaries did not utilise any of its banking facilities. TtF+ZA=+—H0 fEBTZ
Bt B 2 RN AR (I fE K
As at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007, the Company RZZBZENFT_A=T—BRZZ
had issued corporate guarantees to certain financial institutions ZE+FEF+A=1T—0 ARRAR—
for trading facilities granted to a subsidiary engaged in leveraged M2 EETINER 5 2B AR RS
foreign exchange trading and other subsidiaries which carry ETHATAEE 2 At B AR/
out derivatives transactions. The guarantee amounts vary and SRR M BEBRERER - ZER
are dependent on the volume of transactions effected with the BERBEERMEBEEEZRIEM
financial institutions. EE o
Incentive payment (b) HEFKIE

According to an Incentive Agreement dated and announced
on 25 May 2007, the Group is obligated to pay an incentive
project bonus to an Investment Team (in which all the individual
members are employees of the Group) upon the realisation
of each project, whether in whole or in part, under SeaBright
China Special Opportunities (I) Limited, in which the Group has
a 78.9% equity interest. The amount of the incentive project
bonus payable under the agreement is equal to 15% of the profit
realised from the disposal of those investments, plus the related
amount of advisor fee income received less certain attributable
project expenses and the investment team'’s operating expenses.
The incentive project bonus is recognised upon the realisation of
the relevant project. As at 31 December 2008, the accumulated
unrealised gains associated with the relevant projects amounted
to HK$902 million (2007: HK$3.91 billion). If all relevant projects
were disposed of on 31 December 2008 at their fair value, the
amount of the incentive project bonus payable to the Investment
Team would be approximately HK$109 million (2007: HK$480
million).
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

33. COMMITMENTS 33. &I
(a) Capital commitment (a) EAREAIE
As at 31 December 2008, the Group has capital commitments R-ZZENF+_HA=+—8 ' &%
are as follows (2007: HK$214,698,000): BEHNEREENTN(—EEF &K

214,698,0007T);

2008 2007
—BEBN\E —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB
Authorised but not contracted for BB RZELD - 163,655
Contracted but not provided for BRLMERTIRE 815 51,043
815 214,698

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) &REHEAIE
Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2008 amounted RZZBZENFTA=1T—08 &=
to approximately HK$18,367,000 (2007: HK$13,400,000) of HEAEBTEL RS 18,367,000
which HK$9,312,000 (2007: HK$7,931,000) is payable in the T(ZEZT L F : 497 13,400,000
next twelve months. The Group had future aggregate minimum JL) + B 499,312,000 (=&
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: L& 4978%7,931,0007T) AR K

T EARBEXNZAZEERER - A%
BRETATHECEEMEE  RAK
X2 REEE BRI

2008 2007
—BENE e 2
Properties Others Properties Others
)3 Hity FE Hit
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET BT BRI

Not later than one year —ERFI|HA 9,279 33 7,918 13

Later than one year and —ENEEREF
not later than five years 9,048 7 5,469 -
18,327 40 13,387 13
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

33. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(c) Future operating lease arrangement

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had future aggregate

minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases

for investment properties as follows:

33. AiE(E)

(O FISEAERY
R-ZENF+=A=+—B %%
BRETIHBORED LG EA
K REFAINR Z HEMERE R

BT :
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Not later than one year —FE N E|EA 1,046 589
Later than one year and —FEERF
not later than five years 1,172 44
2,218 633

(d) Off-balance sheet financial instruments

The fair values and the contractual or notional amounts of the

Group's trading equity derivatives outstanding at 31 December

2008 are detailed as follows:

assets/(liabilities)

(d) EEEBERIEMIA
R_ZFENF+=-_A=+—8 &%
ERFEZITETIREGHNZATER
BRRERSENAT

Fair value Contractual/
notional amounts

AFEEE/(8F) R/ BRLHE
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE ZEELFE CZEENF —ZTTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T AT
Overseas futures BINEE - (1,990) - 128,550
Forwards contracts HEAH (229,533) (59,118) 674,675 1,913,308
Equity linked derivatives REEBITET A - (434,098) - 231,031
Overseas index swap YN B Ef - - - 39,483
Hang Seng Index futures EEESHE (1,573) = 66,850 =

Hang Seng China Enterprises EERBEMEESSRE

Index futures (207) - 15,587 -
(231,313) (495,206) 757,112 2,312,372

The financial instruments become favourable (assets) or

unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market prices

of the underlying instruments relative to their terms.

China Everbright Limited & Bl 3¢ K3ZAZ AR A 7
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33. COMMITMENTS (continued)
(d) Off-balance sheet financial instruments (continued)

Notional amounts of these financial instruments provide a basis
for comparison with instruments recognised on the balance
sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amount of future cash
flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, are not a representation of the Group’s exposure to

the credit or price risks.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management is of fundamental importance to the business
operation of the Group. The major types of risk inherent in the Group's
business are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk and equity price risk. The Group’s risk management objective is to
maximise shareholders’ value and to reduce volatility in earnings while

maintaining risk exposures with acceptable limits.

The Group’s work in the area of risk management is led by the Risk
Management Group and the Credit Group and the Risk Management
and Compliance Department thereunder. This functional structure can
assess, identify and document the Group’s risk profile and to ensure
that the business units focus, control and systematically avoid potential
risks in various areas of business. On 1 January 2009, the Group set
up a new post of Chief Risk Officer to oversee risk management and
internal control of the Group. The following is a brief description of

the Group’s approach in managing these risks.

(@) Creditrisk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to advances to
customers, trade and other receivables, debt investments and
unlisted derivative financial instruments. In respect of advances to
customers, the Group requires collateral from customers before
advances are granted. The amount of advance permitted depends
on the quality and value of collateral provided by the customer.
Any subsequent change in value, as well as quality, of collateral
is closely monitored in order to determine whether any corrective

action is required.

33. AEE)

(d) BEESERIEBMIACE)
ZEETMTAZEZRSBIERED
REERBRERNTALR 2R
£ T —EBRTSERKAESR
EZEHIRTIAZHKAYE-
At - YRR AEEFESZEE
HERRL

34. @I A

REREERARERTEFNER - A&
EXBMEIZANERREBEEERR R
BESRER - FXERE - IMNERRMAE
ke - AEEEREREBRRFIER
EBESAERBD BN E - FE#ER
IR E PR KFEZA

AEENRBRERIETHRRERER )
A EENMREMERETHRARE R
REEEREBAIT - ARBREERAEIEER
HER LB EREE B R EAEE R
BrEaHz EZRBITEERAER I
AFHE - BRI RCEAREZ ARERE -
AR MR F A B PTRE - 25 R R
B|EBLARBRENSTHAR - —TF
NFE-—A—BE AEEHRLIERE
BB SEAKEEREERKLAE
TR - DTIRAKENFAE R EEZIR
R\ 9 77 A LE H A

() FERR
AEBZEERRIERBEEFE
R B REMER EHRETA
HIEFTITESRIA - BREFE
P AREERREFREEEMRDS
RAEERK - FIRFFZEREEAURT

ERRcEREEE HEHRBERZ
EREBEEPNTEXETER W0

BHRERRDEEITE -

Annual Report 2008 —Z= )\ £

137



138

Notes to the Financial Statements

i e N

For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@) Credit risk (continued)

Trade and other receivables mainly arise from the Group’s
brokerage business and investment activities. Receivables from
security brokerage customers and brokers are normally due two
days after trade day while deposits with brokers are repayable on
demand. The Group has established procedures in the selection
of brokers with sound credit ratings and/or reputation.

Investments in debt instruments and unlisted derivative financial
instruments are also governed by whether the issuers and the
trade counterparties respectively have sound credit ratings.

The Group has well defined policies in place on the setting and
approval of trading, credit and investment position limits in
order to manage its credit risk exposure and concentration. As
at the balance sheet date, the Group does not have a significant
concentration of credit risk other than:

(i) the provision of advances to customers, which are
collaterialised by unlisted debt securities issued by issuers
with sound credit ratings, of approximately HK$117 million
(2007: approximately HK$241 million);

(i) a margin collateral deposit of a remaining notional amount
of HK$354 million with a reputable financial institution with
sound credit rating; and

(iiiy the provision of advances to customers which are secured by
residential use leasehold lands in the Mainland of RMB200
million (2007: Nil).

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset, including derivative financial instruments, in the
balance sheet date deducting any impairment allowance. Except
for the corporate guarantee set out in note 32(a), the Group does
not provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group
or the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit
risk in respect of the corporate guarantee at the balance sheet
date amounted to HK$170 million.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from advances to customers are set
out in note 18.

China Everbright Limited /1 B3¢ KRB PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

34. &R I B
(b) RBHELEB

The Group’s policy is to regularly assess current and expected
liquidity requirements and to ensure that it maintains reserves
of cash, readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

For subsidiaries with statutory liquidity requirements, the
Group monitors closely their liquidity position. To ensure strict
compliance, the Group maintains adequate cash reserves to
prepare for immediate fund injection if required. If there is a
medium-to-long term operation need, the management would
also consider adjusting those subsidiaries’ capital structure.
Subsidiaries with external equity stakeholders are generally
responsibility for their own liquidity management.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s financial liabilities which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay:

AEB R BR RS ANE MIEH 2R
B2 FRIEHERMAET - BERERRE
MR HAEHERE FHES
VTHEREETBCHEBREZESHR
e - *EARN A ERHNRE
BeHmK-

HEREABZERDERENHE R
A AEEEYERERIBIESR
RERBERETHERAT  AKEF
BHEBRRNRCFHE  UERRT
B-mATRENZLERE  ©HE
NeEEHBERMBARMNEARR
B —RME - HEHIN RN A
MENHBEARBTREERDILEE
e

TREJIAEENSRABEREER
BRABEASOIIH AR -
TIRBEHNARMBARSRRAEE K
BAERNNBERES -

2008 2007
ZBENE ERLE
Total More than ~ More than Total Morethan ~ More than
contractual Within 1 year 2 year contractual Within 1 year 2 year
undiscounted  1yearor butlessthan but less than undiscounted ~ 1yearor  butlessthan  but less than
Carrying  cash flow  on demand 2years Syears  Camying  cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years
amount  SHRER  -Fhg  BE-F  BERF ot AOAEE  Emd BEF BERE
BAE REREE TREXN RIWRE RINEE  BAE REREE BN EJNRE  EOREE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000
BEtn  BMTr BMTn BEtn BETn BT EBETn BT BT BT
Creditors, depositsreceived ~ FETERS: «
and accrued charges BliEER
BIRER 5061 15061 275,060 - - 85007 815107 815107 - -
Trading Securities RAE% 102 @05 421,082 - - 542,207 556,055 556,055 - -
Amount due to associates ERBENTEE 438 438 438 - - 438 438 438 = =
Amount due to ulfimate ERREBRAT
holding company LB 63 63 63 - - - - - - -
Notes payable EfZE 75959 75959 - - T nm’r L = - L
772513 112513 696,614 - 75959  1,400539 1414387 1,371,600 - 42,787
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group monitors its interest rate exposure regularly to ensure
that the underlying risk is monitored within an acceptable range.
Most of the Group's interest bearing assets and liabilities are on a
floating rate basis with maturity of one year or less.

The Group's interest rate positions arise from treasury
and operating activities. Interest rate risk arises in treasury
management, customer financing and investment portfolios.
Interest rate risk primarily results from the timing differences
in the repricing of interest-bearing assets, liabilities and
commitments. It also relates to positions from non-interest
bearing liabilities including shareholders’ funds and current
accounts, as well as from certain fixed rate loans. Interest rate
risk is managed by the Treasury Department under the delegated
authority of the Board of Directors. The instruments used to
manage interest rate risk include time deposits and interest rate
linked derivatives.

In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest bearing
financial liabilities, the following table indicates their effective
interest rate at the balance sheet date as well as a sensitivity
analysis of interest rate changes. Assuming that a general
increase of 0.5%/decrease of 0.5% in interest rates had occurred
at the balance date on the Group’s interest rate exposure, the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits, as well as equity,
would have an estimated increase of HK$24,007,000/decrease
of HK$13,494,000 (2007: profit after tax and retained profits
increase of HK$31,416,000/decrease of HK$62,832,000 for
increase of 1%/decrease of 2% in interest rates).

China Everbright Limited /1 B3¢ KRB PR A A
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

34. EM I A

Interest rate risk (continued) () FEEB:(E)
The Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities are substantially TRETREERTEEERBED
at variable interest rate basis: BRA R ETE N RFIRERT A (33
HRRAREE) :
2008 2007
—B2EN\EF —EEAE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate HK$'000 rate HK$'000
BEA= B =
% BB % AT T
Assets BE
Advances to customers EFER 7.4% 660,928 7.3% 1,600,458
Bank balances and cash BITREHB IR G 0.4% 4,418,671 2.9% 1,826,923
Total interest bearing assets EEEEARH 5,079,599 3,427,381
The above increase or decrease in interest rate represent the PN RER TN EEEREE N —
management'’s assessment of a reasonably change in interest HAeEEEAERBAHBSEN RS
rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet date. It TR WRBRFAAEEM A B REE
also assumes that all other variable remains constant. The analysis WIS o DT EE —TEEHFHER
is performed on the same basis for 2007. EEEIT o
Foreign currency risk (d) IMNEEBER
The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk primarily stems REFBZINERETERGEBEE
from holdings of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in HBEZES  BIFINER S RIEIN

foreign currencies, leveraged foreign exchange trading and net
investment in foreign subsidiaries and associates. As most of
the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities and net investment
in foreign subsidiaries and associates are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars or Renminbi, the management
does not consider there to be any significant currency risk. The
Group has a policy not to maintain a significant net position on
leveraged foreign exchange trading and the underlying exposure is
monitored on a continuing basis.

Overall, management monitors the Group’s foreign currency
exposure closely and would consider hedging significant currency
exposure should the need arise.

BB~ A BB N B 2 SRR E o A&
BAMOzEBEERABRBEIN
B /8 X B BB i N R 2 SRR B B
% XTHAREHEHE  BEEEALT
BHE RS REAIMERRE - HET
SMNER B - AEBZBERETRE

BERR  MARKERRITEN
B RIErE - UARMEREZS

MTAMS  AKEEEFTENEN
TR BNHERGE =B A s B SN AR 12
FEH 2 NP EBR - AR R F
BRI AR ZKF -

mEmMS  BEEBHAREZINER
REFHEZNES  EAFERE

ERHERINEMN PR EETEH T
%7_] o
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At balance sheet date, the Group’s exposure to currency risk
arising from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

34. €T A%

(d) SMNERB(E)
TREINBEABRALEERA
ERREEREBCZEXAR 5
BEREENGESERAEERY

they relate is tabled below: e SR -
2008 2007
—E2ENE —EELE
In USD In RMB In USD In RMB
EY AR eI ARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT AT
Fixed assets IEEF - 744 - -
Investments in associates REEE N T 2 17E - 4,888,790 = 4,470,959
Available-for-sale securities BHIHEES - 3,743,352 - 3,805,890
Financial assets designated EEABBER

at fair value through R AFEE

profit or loss NEREE - 150,391 182,992
Advances to customers ZEE 151,896 - 248,626 -
Debtors, deposits and FEMBRZN ~ e

prepayments RIERR 218,875 - 139,564 4,388
Trading securities RH5FEF(REEE)

(current assets) - - 37,449 -
Bank balances and cash RITEARRIRE 1,285,062 205,980 679,883 1,156
Creditors, deposits received ERERR - EdiRE

and accrued charges NIBIRE A (104,605) (210) (98,029) (1,130)
Trading securities RH5EFEH(RBAE)

(current liabilities) (229,533) - (59,118) -
Note payable JENER - (75,958) = (42,787)
Deferred tax RIEFIE - (226,548) = =
Net exposure arising from RECEREE

recognised assets KB &Rk AR

and liabilities 1,321,695 8,686,541 948,375 8,421,468
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

34. &R I B

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued) (d) SEEEE)
An analysis of the estimated change in the Group’s profit after TERAIMASEREEAGBRALAS
tax (and retained profits) and other components of consolidated BEEEAEENEXRHIEAER R
equity in response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign I - AEBRTEREN(MRER
exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at R LA R AR RS E M 4B A 2By 2 FE 5T
the balance sheet date is presented in the following table. EEp o
2008 2007
“BENE —ETN\F
Effect on Effect on
Increase/ profit after Effect on Increase/ profit after Effect on
(decrease) tax and other (decrease) tax and other
in foreign retained  components in foreign retained components
exchange profits of equity exchange profits of equity
rates HiRBg  HEREM rates BRI  WiESEh
Ext#/ BRRRE ) ExtH/ B RRE )
(TH&) Blms e e (T%) Bimzg e
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BRI BB BETT
United States Dollars, USD e 1% 13,217 - 1% 9,484 -
(1%) (13,217) - (1%) (9,484) -
Renminbi, RMB ARE 5% 2,683 431,644 1% 10,123 579,379
(5%) (2,683) (431,644) (5%) (7,231) (413,842)

(e)

The above analysis assumes the change in foreign exchange rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk in existence
at that date while all other variables remains constant. The stated
changes also represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange rates until the next annual
balance sheet date. The Hong Kong dollar and the United
States dollar peg is assumed to stay materially unaffected by any
fluctuation United States dollar against other currencies. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments classified as trading securities (see note 20), available-
for-sale securities (see note 15) and financial assets designated as
fair value through profit or loss (see note 16). Other than unlisted
securities held for medium-to-long term investment purposes, all
of these investments are listed.

(e)

EaATERREREHNEERR/RE
HELE  WEEARAKEZERR
B HAFEMNINER - AEREMA
BRREFIE - LRZJINEHTY
EEEREE N —HA2FEERARSRK
B EAfE & I Rl BE AV BE R B By FTAA ©
REEEESTHHBTERETH
HEENRBMIZBAKRNTE -
DT RE - TR FHREELETT -

B R

RO PR ZESR(RKE20) - HH
HER S (RME15) RHE RRIBE
SARRAFEENSREE(RME
16)MERREME » AREEARHE
BEZFBNER - REFEETRAR
BEMIEEMBHIN - FIEZETREN
REMERE °
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

34. &M I A®)

(e) Equity price risk (continued) (e) BERRE)
The Group's listed investments are mainly listed on the Stock AEEz FMEEFEEREHER
Exchange of Hong Kong and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. SEFRFIBEER G ET - EER
Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are rested with assigned SR AFRVREHIEENERKRE E K
investment team professionals and each investment portfolio is B SEKEESHIEENER
governed by specific investment and risk management guideline. BERRAREEESIEE - ARERE M
Independent daily monitoring of each portfolio against the ERBEAHFEREAEGELHTE
corresponding guideline is carried out by the Risk Management TEERIE S EI TR B - e M
and Compliance Department. Listed investments held in the EXBHFMWEABBIEEARBRAF
available-for-sale and financial assets designated as fair value BEMNEREEREHAAZ FTHIR
through profit or loss portfolio have been chosen based on & DIRBERRABERE D PGE
their medium-to-long term growth potential and are monitored A7 e RS EE s H RIDEATEHA R TARTRT
regularly for performance against expectations.
The performance of the Group’s unquoted investments is assessed, AEB B BEFLRERITEN LT
based on the limited information available to the Group, RNElZ FIRELE - WIRIBEANS B AT
periodically against performance of listed entities of comparable JFOBRER - THEHEIE FHRE
size and nature of businesses. HIRIREITAE ©
The following table shows the approximate changes in the TRIAREE T ERF(RREE
Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) in response to FM)YAEREETRIEETREMSES
reasonable change in the relevant listed and unlisted equity stock BTSSR E - iRl T+
prices. The analysis is performed on the same basis as in 2007: FHER ELEETT ¢
2008 2007
“2ENE e Y3
Effect on Effect on
profit after Effect on profit after Effect on
Increase/ tax and other Increase/ taxand other
(decrease) retained  components (decrease) retained components
in equity profits of equity in equity profits of equity
price HRB% HgmEt price B HER A
RELH/ BRRRE ) RELA/ B RRE )
(TH) bbilling ¥e (M) baillioy 7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETTT
Market price of underlying listed ~ FHBEHRE
equity investments OEAE 10% (5,965) 77,186 5% 48,936 226,570
(10%) 1,065 (72,286) (5%) (48,936) (226,570)
Price of underlying unlisted ELTREREH) 5% 7,520 150,239 5% 16,889 191,405
equity investment B (5%) (18,946) (138,813) (5%) (16,889) (191,405)
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. e T ANATE

ATEER

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics of
the financial instruments and relevant market information. Where
available, the most suitable measure for fair value is the quoted
market price. In the absence an organised secondary markets, for
most financial instruments, and in particular for unlisted equity
and debt instruments and derivatives, direct market prices are
not available. The fair value of such instruments was therefore
calculated on the basis of well-established valuation techniques
using current market parameters. In particular, the fair value is a
theoretical value applicable at a given reporting date, and hence
can only be used as an indicator of value realisable in a future
sale.

The Group compares valuations derived from models with quoted
prices of similar financial instruments, and public information
available in order to further validate and calibrate the models.
These techniques involve uncertainties and are significantly
affected by the assumptions used and judgments made regarding
risk characteristics of various financial instruments, discount rates,
estimates of future cash flows, future expected loss experiences
and other factors. Changes in assumptions could significantly
affect these estimates and the resulting fair values. Derived
fair value estimates cannot necessarily be substantiated by
comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, could
not be realised in an immediate sale of the instruments. The
following methods and significant assumptions have been applied
in determining the fair values of financial instruments:

(i)  The fair value of unquoted equity investments is estimated
using an appropriate combination of (1) discount cash flow
method to devolve the future value of the business into
a present market value, (2) deducing from prices recently
paid for similar assets and the financial indicators of the
transacted assets such as net book value and net operating
profit, and (3) applying, if possible, price/earnings ratios
for similar listed companies adjusted to reflect the specific
circumstances of the investments.

(@) Estimation of fair values (a)

N E[BFRRIESE T AR EM
HETSERRE - ERBIEL -
Hitt—REEEH - EETHRE -
MERERFTEAFEREENS
A BEHRAZRERMTE - LHEE
FLETRREERTARITETA
HRR—(EFEBH—FHE - Fit
WEEEMSRE - WETANRF
BEERE-LERRBFME2HHOMN
ERERNAFE - ZERRIERANE -
AFEEEEARE —RHERS B
WEREE MARERARES
MTAHER SRTAZRER
H1E1R ©

AEEERERENEEMBGHE
HREEMTANBRERESARE
FHELES - DAE — R B W F R AFE
HAAE - WFEEA S RIBERE
WEXIMAREMSSESRTA
MEBREFIE - BRIRE - EEHE RS
o TRHI R R A E A HFZATEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Estimation of fair values (continued)

(i)  the fair value of derivatives is estimated either using broker
guotes or by discounting future cash flows. Future cash
flows are estimated based on management’s best estimate
of the amount it would receive or pay to terminate the
contract at the balance sheet date taking into account
current market conditions. The discount rate used is a
market rate for a similar instrument at the balance sheet
date. The fair value of an option contract is determined by
applying the Black-Scholes option valuation model. Inputs
are based on market related data at the balance sheet date.

(b) Fair value
All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at
amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2008 and 2007.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 36. Z4B & R8s
STATEMENT

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash outflow from B F A & ) B 4R 2 E B) 2 3R @ O HF RE
operating activities: ARk ¢
2008 2007
—EEN\F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation Rk A5 AT 22 7| 1,183,564 5,463,148
Interest income on bank deposits HRITE A S WA (48,305) (71,514)
Interest expenses FESZH 6,921 122,780
Dividend income Az B UA (38,146) (71,654)
Gain on deemed disposal of interests IEBEHEH SR a &R
in associates - (924,503)
Share of profits less losses of associates FE(EH & N E BRI s e (480,185) (2,906,226)
Depreciation and amortisation TENEHEER 10,376 7,082
Staff share option amortisation RIS R Y 1,160 6,915
Realised gain on financial asset designated B ARBER AR AT ER
at fair value through profit or loss Mo R EEDE BERKWE 4,880 (215,632)
Unrealised loss /(gain) on financial asset S AEiBE R IR
designated at fair value through AT EENCREESHILE
profit or loss AR EIR W= 252,515 (192,428)
Unrealised gain on notes payable ERNEEALBATRKE (16,827) (56,786)
Net gain on disposal of I EEREEE S TS
available-for-sale securities (1,590,357) (610,149)
Surplus on property revaluation VI B (I E (6,001) (2,400)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets HERTEE 2 (W), EE (2,220) 876
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries HEN B A TZF (25) (228,865)
Impairment loss on HEHHEE S 2RERR
available-for-sale securities 260,091 -
Surplus on revaluation of KEMFEELIEE
investment properties - 1,642
Cash (outflow)inflow before LIBESEERIRE
working capital changes GrRE),/ mA (462,559) 322,286
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

36. ZEBEESREN T (@)

STATEMENT (continued)
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Cash (outflow)/inflow before LIBESEERIRE
working capital changes ORE),/RA (462,559) 322,286
Decrease/(increase) in advances BEERRLD,(350)
to customers 939,530 (699,336)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, deposits FEUBRTR - & RFERTFK
and prepayments wA,/(5hn) 917,061 (1,001,357)
Decrease in trading securities R BFH B 839,809 165,690
(Decrease)/increase in creditors, deposits FEERF - Bl e MTEIRER
received and accrued charges Crd), /1 hn (544,833) 402,473
Decrease in amount due from ultimate JEUR B AR R B FRIE R A
holding company - 2,613
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to FES B 4R A5 B N B 3R I8
ultimate holding company #mn,/ CRd) 63 (37)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNEH (97,066) (10,542)
Overseas profits tax paid EAEINFIEEL (43,439) (11,376)
Interest paid EAFLE (6,921) (122,756)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from RESEREA RS
operating activities WA ()48 1,541,645 (952,342)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

37. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. HWER
(a) Business segments (a) ¥*%51E|

AEEMREZEBETEADR=
BERRE  SRRBIRHIRE
REAMMER - WEB DAL ER DN

term investments plus other operations. An analysis by business N

The Group conducts the majority of its business activities in
three areas: short-term investments, financial services and long-

segment is as follows:

Long-term investments

Short-term investments Financial services and others Inter-segment elimination Total
RHRE SRR REREREM HRRBARBYE it

008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“ER\ CETLE CERN\E CITLF CER\F CTRLF CRRNF CTRLEF CRRN\E CERLR
HKS000 ~ HKS00D  HKS'000 ~ HKS000  HKS'000 — HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tén  TET  TEn TR TBn  TEr  TEn  TEr  TER  TER

(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(&31) (&31) (E51) (&31) (E51)
OPERATING INCOME & EEUER
OTHER NET INCOME EfEIA
Investment income REWA (583,028 18501 8,259 3601 236,873 (554,192 ) - - (337.8%) 214290
Interest income FIEWA BM5 5,112 91,148 91 5107 12409 - - 135,270 36453
Commission and senvice income BRERHERA 157,669 5301 168,802 311,088 - - (157,669 ) (531) 168802 311,088
Net gan on disasal of HEREEETL
avalableforsles securies b=l - - - - 1590357 610,149 - - 1590357 610,149
Realisd (s on nancil assels A E AR BRA MR
designatd af vl hough DNIEENSHEE
pnoftorlos BER(EX) /Y& - - - - (4880) 5 - - (4880) 25
Uniedlised (ossJgainonvaliain. 6 BB ERD B
offirandlases desgred NIEENSHEE
atfair valuethrough profit oross BfERENFER
(B%)/ - - - - (s815) 1048 - S (mst5) 1o
(ainon dispose ofsubsdies HEMBARE - - - - b1 208,865 - - b1 208,865
(therincome EHlA 5731 298 7904 3,088 8127 LW - - 41,762 8,300
Totalaperating ncome and BEENER
otfier et income EfA (381213 857919 276,113 55739 1,603,694 184538 (157,669 ) (531) 1340925 131875
RESULTS £
Segment resuls NEEE (550,527 ) 854,48 107,168 057 1,201,558 171768 - - 758,199 1,998,507
Unallocated cororat expenses FRHATER (47899)  (143308)
Operatingpoft HER 0300 1755199
Finence costs EER 6%1)  (In7)
G on deemed disosel o FEEERENT
intrests in an asodate BEEH - 94503
She of pros s osses ERBELT
of ascies Bl 480,185 290626
[ncome tax i (208,967) (197724 )
Proft afer takaton BEERA 974,597 565424
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

37. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 37. 2 EER @)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) ¥B2HE(E)

Long-term investments

Short-term investments Financial services and others Inter-segment elimination Total
RHRE SRRH REREREM HRRBRBYE it

008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
SRR\ LR CRRN\E CTTLF CIINE CTTLF CERN\E CTTLE CERNE CERLR
HKS000 ~ HKS00D  HKS'000 ~ HKS000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR TAr  TEr  TAr TEx  TEr TR TEr  TER  TAR

(restated) (restated) (restateq) (restated) (restateq)
(E31) (E51) (E31) (E51) (E31)
OTHER INFORMATION EHEH
Seqment asets AR 2,238,838 2000769 2,334,750 20%84 5536615 10053483 (1512) (5307) 10,102,691 15,707,369
Investment n assocites BN 4,888,791 4470959
Unelocated coortease FAMMATEE 64,34 107871
Totd assets mEE 15,095,876 20,286,199
Seqent iabiftes PERE 442,707 21103% 195,417 10332 95,959 3210 (1512) B T65M 139,670
Unalocated comporate iaiftes NG =L 80M7 138995
Total e 28k 155988 2788615
Capitel expencitres BN 2410 10 - - 13250 1571 - - 15720 15811
Depreciton and amortation expenses  FTE REEER i1 665 Pl n 939 6,040 - - 102376 1081
(b) Geographical segments (b) HEHIE
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2008 31 December 2007
BE-ZE\FT-A=T-RLEE BECZTHETA=t-HILER
China China
Hong Kong Mainland Total Hong Kong Mainland Total
B HEAL fit &k Bl CEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT BT BETT BETT BETT
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(31) (51) &)
Segment operating income PEEXRER
and other net income E A
Operating income EEWE 316,181 21173 343,354 728,222 2,622 730,844
Other net income HAFHA 567,783 429,788 997,571 788,878 713,153 1,502,031
883,964 456,961 1,340,925 1,517,100 715,775 2,232,875
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

37. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Geographical segments (continued)

As at 31 December 2008
RZBENET-A=t-BLEE

/'\:\‘zlgﬁ*# Zm.
(b) HEHIE(HE)

As at 31 December 2007
RBE+E+-A=+-BIt5E

China China
Hong Kong Mainland Total Hong Kong Mainland Total
B5  tEA At A ast
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI BETR BB BB BB
Segment assets PEEE 5,399,567 4,703,124 10,102,691 8,192,537 7,514,832 15,707,369
Additions to fixed assets NEETEE 12,380 3,340 15,720 15,780 97 15,877

38. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of these accounts and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses for the years presented. Changes in assumptions may
have a significant impact on the accounts in the periods where the
assumptions are changed. The application of assumptions and estimates
means that any selection of different assumptions would cause the
Group's reporting to differ. The Group believes that the assumptions
that have been made are appropriate and that the accounts therefore
present the financial position and results fairly, in all material
respects. Management has discussed with the Audit Committee the
development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s significant
accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies

and estimates.

38. ST T R A&
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

38. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

()

(if)

(iir)

Advances to customers

Advances to customers are reviewed periodically to
assess whether impairment losses exist. The Group makes
judgement as to whether there is any objective evidence
that an advance is impaired, i.e. whether there is a
decrease in estimated future cash flows. If management
has determined, based on their judgement, that objective
evidence for impairment exists, expected future cash
flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for
assets with similar credit risk characteristics. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of the current observable
data. Management reviews the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating future cash flows regularly
to reduce any difference between loss estimates and actual
loss experience.

Unlisted investments

The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale securities and
other non-trading securities are significantly affected by
the combination of valuation methodologies employed, the
parameters used and, if required, the underlying sample
chosen. The valuation methodologies and the source of
parameters adopted by the Group are discussed in note
35(a)(i).

Tax provision

The Group's taxation provision is based on management’s
assessment of the estimated assessable profits for the
year taking into consideration the Hong Kong and, those
relevant, overseas tax legislations.

China Everbright Limited /1 B3¢ KRB PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

39. BANKING FACILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Aggregate banking facilities of the Group as at 31 December 2008
amounted to approximately HK$170 million (2007: approximately
HK$170 million). None of these facilities were utilised at balance sheet

date (2007: None).

40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

On adoption of the preferred presentation under "HKAS39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, certain comparative
figures have been reclassified in the consolidated income statement.

Details of changes is stated in Note 3.

41. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

DECEMBER 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretaions
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2008 and

which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Company’s results of operations and financial position.

In addition, HKFRS 8, Operation segments, which is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, may result in

new or amended disclosures in the financial statements.

42. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements on page 63 to 153 were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2009.

39.

40.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

RESULTS £
For the years ended
BETSIRHFE
31.12.2004 31.12.2005 31.12.2006 31.12.2007 31.12.2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BT BEETL

Turnover (Restated) Mg (575 2,832,891 2,002,683 2,796,909 4,584,025 4,143,448
Operating income (Restated) SEWR(EY) 171,051 253,938 390,739 730,844 343,354
Operating profit after finance cost REBTIRIEE R 326,264 311,315 472,098 1,632,419 703,379
Gain on deemed disposal of FEEHERE QR

interest in an associate TR AT - 583 - 924,503 -
Gain on disposal of interest HEBE N B AR

in an associate 166,514 - - - -
Share of profits less losses of associates  [E{FHE= ARIBFIREE  (431,034) 26,467 538,194 2,906,226 480,185
Impairment loss on goodwill BERERERE

attributable to interests in associates  JFi{EEE (102,300) = - - -
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEAEM(EE) (40,556) 338,365 1,010,292 5,463,148 1,183,564
Income tax FIa (11,386) (33,865) (88,338) (197,724) (208,967)
Profit/(loss) after taxation BEEET/(E8) (51,942) 304,500 921,954 5,265,424 974,597
Attributable to: FER

Shareholders of the Company PA/NET | (59,857) 295,746 878,976 5,005,592 1,014,832

Minority interests O (X T 7,915 8,754 42,978 259,832 (40,235)

(51,942) 304,500 921,954 5,265,424 974,597
Earning/(loss) per share (HK$) BREF,/(B8)(Er) (0.04) 0.19 0.56 3.17 0.64
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at
RT3 E
31.12.2004 31.12.2005 31.12.2006 31.12.2007 31.12.2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BETT BETT BT BETT EETT

Total assets BEE 5,380,317 5,940,441 8,367,377 20,286,199 15,055,876
Total liabilities wEE (897,252)  (1,048,503)  (1,737,210)  (2,788,615)  (1,555,988)
Minority interest DR FEER (16,828) (64,857) (254,847)  (1,138,612) (300,795)
Shareholders' fund MR HE S 4,466,237 4,827,081 6,375,320 16,358,972 13,199,093
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZ—ZTT/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

Location Site area/ Gross floor area Tenure Use
1t 2 tith BEEERE FH R
Hong Kong
BE
46th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, Gross floor area of 10,800 sq. ft. Government |ease for Commercial
16 Harcourt Road 75 years from 23 July 1980,
extended for another 75 years
ERE165 #B3E5EETE10,800F R BREH+TRE - # [GES
BRREFH046E —NMN\EFLA=+=Hi "
ARt tRE
40th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, Gross floor area of 10,800 sq. ft. Government lease for Commercial
16 Harcourt Road 75 years from 23 July 1980,
extended for another 75 years
ERRE165 B3R EEETE10,800F AR BREOLTHF - H GES
RRE T 0402 —NWN\EELAZ+=HE "
ARt TRE
Flat A, 27/F, 1 Star Street, Wanchai Gross floor area of 655 sq. ft. Government lease for Residential
75 years from 22 August 1928
extended for another 75 years
EFEE —5%27A ABEEEEIE655F TR BREALTIF - # FE
—NZN\ENAZ+ZBE -
AERC+hE
Flat H, 6th Floor, Gross floor area of 1,096 sq. ft. Government lease from Residential
Tower 10, South Horizons, 28 January 1988 to
Ap Lei Chau 31 March 2040
ASAM MBRREEEA1,096F 5 R EETiERO):= R WAVAN:S F=x
Bats —AZ+N\RE=ZHZF
FTECEHE —A=+—H
Flat G, 40th Floor and the Roof Terrace, Gross floor area of 2,195 sq. ft. Government lease Residential
Tower 17, South Horizons, 28 January 1988 to
Ap Lei Chau 31 March 2040
BRI MBREEEE2,195F 7R B AR —N\E =
Blats —RAZ+NBEZZTNEF
E+TEARCEERE =A=+—H
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 BZE—ZTTN\F+_A=1+—HIFE

Location Site area/ Gross floor area Tenure Use
ik 1t BEEERE 8 R
Flat H, 22nd Floor, Gross floor area of 1,107 sq. ft. Government lease from Residential
Tower 21, South Horizons, 28 January 1988 to

Ap Lei Chau 31 March 2040

AR BEEME107FAR BB —NNN\F =%
BIaEE —A-tN\BE-_ZENTHF
FZT—E2EHE =A=+—H”

Car Parking Space Nos. 230 and Not applicable Government lease from Carpark
241 on Podium Level 1, Phase 28 January 1988 to

Car Parking Space No. 9 on 31 March 2040

Podium Level 2, Phase Ill,

South Horizons, Ap Lei Chau

BRI NiER BAREAR—NNN\F FEf
Bats —AZ+tN\RE=ZHZF

E2RTEFEE =A=+—H

£230 k24157 FEAL

REIBFEE2EBEIRIFEN

China Mainland

e NG

8th Floor, Industrial Bank Building, Gross floor area of 1,240.95 sq.m. Land use right for 50 years from Commercial
4013 Shennan Road Futian District, 27 December 2000

Shenzhen

AYImia AR IBEEMIR1,240.95F H K T RERL TSR GRS
REAAREA0135% “EETE+_ACTERE

BEIRITRE8IE
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